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2007 was a milestone year for capital régional et coopératif Desjardins.  
in the fall, the Québec Ministère des Finances introduced new measures to secure 
appro priate, permanent capitalization of the fund, and modified investment standards 
to reflect changing market conditions. as of March 1, 2008, annual share issues of 
$150 million are authorized as long as total capitalization of new and outstanding shares 
does not exceed $1 billion. ensuring fund continuity will allow our manager, Desjardins  
venture capital, to align its management approach more closely with the venture  
capital sector, given that coaching businesses and cooperatives generally extends over 
more than five years. These improved measures position capital régional et coopératif 
Desjardins to fulfil its regional economic development mission through patient capital 
investment in Québec businesses and cooperatives. 

This initiative also held a boon for shareholders. as of November 10, 2007, the tax credit 
for share purchases increased from 35% to 50% and the yearly eligible maximum doubled 
from $2,500 to $5,000. This is great news for investors looking for a vehicle that gives 
them both tax benefits and attractive returns.

i would be remiss in not underscoring the exceptional contribution of the Desjardins  
caisse network in this regard. Following the government announ cement, share sales were 
suspended to allow our fund manager to make the necessary changes to the issue prospectus and related documents and systems. This was done 
in record time and the caisse network quickly resumed sales of available shares. Their extraordinary promotional effort resulted in the sale of some  
$50 million in just three days, confirming that the new measures make our shares both attractive and popular.

Difficult economic conditions during the year had an impact on our investment portfolio and on share value. Nonetheless, capital régional et 
coopératif Desjardins’ manager maintained investment activity in all Québec regions with great success. These astute investments, which assure 
the growth and continuity of promising Québec businesses and cooperatives, would not have been possible without the management expertise 
of Desjardins venture capital. i would like to thank louis l. Roquet and his team for the tremendous support they provide Québec entrepreneurs 
and for the strategic balance of growth and stability they bring to our portfolio. Their dedicated crafting of flexible, customized solutions allows 
us to fulfil our development role even in periods of economic turbulence and volatility.

i would also like to highlight the establishment of the Bruno Riverin awards, created in tribute to his role in founding and growing capital régional 
et coopératif Desjardins. These awards honour outstanding businesses and cooperatives in our portfolio.

capital régional et coopératif Desjardins stems from an initiative implemented and championed by alban D’amours, President and chief executive 
Officer of Desjardins group. On behalf of the Board of Directors and myself, i would like to salute Mr. D’amours for this outstanding visionary 
achievement that, as of 2007 year-end, has made possible capital raising from 120,652 investors, supported 195 businesses and cooperatives in 
all regions of Québec and created nearly 30,000 jobs for Quebecers!

andré lachapelle
chairman of the Board

Message fRoM tHe cHaIRMan  
of tHe boaRD

ImpressIve achIevements and  
Favourable measures

andré lachapelle
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geneRal ManageR’s RePoRt  
busIness RevIeW 

results Impacted by challengIng condItIons, 
but InvestIng remaIns proFItable

Three factors put capital régional et coopératif Desjardins at a  
disadvantage in 2007: some business sectors were affected by diffi-
cult conditions, the rise of the canadian dollar hit many companies 
and crumbling credit markets led to a drop in the value of the liquid 
portfolio. That being said, because bond investments are held to  
maturity, the impact of this decrease will be temporary. Beyond  
these economic factors, the portfolio was—until very recently—more  
heavily invested in high-risk business sectors such as biotechno-
logies and technologies. also, the portfolio is still young and has 
not yet reached its full potential. The average age of portfolio  
investments is now four years, and the optimization period for  
venture capital investment is about seven years. 

against this backdrop, capital régional et coopératif Desjardins, 
which determines share value twice a year, set value at $9.89 at 
year-end, down $0.32 as compared with December 31, 2006, with 
the main effect coming at the end of the first half year. However, 
the reduction in per share value has a very marginal impact on 
compound annual return net of income tax credit. 

Net assets totalled $733 million at year-end, up $78 million over 
December 31, 2006. The company’s authorized investments in  
Québec businesses and funds reached $470 million in 2007,  
including $88 million authorized in 77 businesses and funds during 
the year, with $16 million in resource regions or the cooperative  
sector. at the close of fiscal 2007, capital régional counted 195 busi-
nesses and funds, including 12 coope ratives, in its investment port-
folio. Sixty-eight of these businesses are in the resource regions.  

bruno morIn
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The liquid portfolio is primarily made up of highly liquid, low-
credit risk bond securities, with government guarantees for 54%. 
The portion of the liquid portfolio relative to total assets, 48% or 
$354 million as at December 31, 2007 compared with 50% for the 
same period in 2006, should decrease in 2008 and over the coming 
years to stabilize around 36% as the fund reaches maximum limits 
and full potential for investments impacting the Québec economy. 

With the government’s substantial tax credit to shareholders, the  
company must fulfil its mandate of fostering the economic develop-
ment of Quebec’s regions and cooperatives, as well as optimizing  
returns for its shareholders and reducing the risks of capital losses. For 
this reason, the company favours a balanced, global management 
approach, that covers both the portfolio of investments impacting the 
Québec economy and the liquid portfolio. This approach balances the 
risk/return ratio in the medium term, while mitigating the impact of 
share volatility, regardless of the economic conditions that might come 
and go during shareholders’ holding periods.

Share sales from the 2007 issue raised approximately $100 million  
among 29,457 private investors, bringing the total number of 
shareholders to 120,652. Shareholders who purchased shares  
before the new measures announced on November 9, 2007  
obtained a tax credit of 35% while those who purchased shares after 
that date enjoyed a tax credit of 50%.  We regret that the 35% tax 
credit was a disappointment for some.  However, with the increase 
in the annual maximum eligible amount from $2,500 to $5,000, 
some shareholders were able to purchase a new $2,500 slice of 
additional shares that were eligible for the 50% tax credit under the 
new provisions. For these shareholders, the cumulative effect of the 
two purchase transactions was an average tax credit of 42.50%.  
unfortunately, remaining available capitalization was only $50 million  
when sales resumed last December, limiting the number of share-
holders who were able to purchase additional shares. 

November 2008 marks the end of the first seven-year holding  
period and some shareholders may request redemption of their 
shares. in this regard, i wish to underscore that capital régional  
has the necessary liquidities to cover all potential redemptions. it 
is important to bear in mind that redemption after the minimum  
seven-year holding period revokes tax credit eligibility. This means 
that shareholders who purchase shares from the 2008 issue and 
who, between now and February 28, 2009, opt for the full or  
partial redemption of shares after the seven-year holding period, 
will not be eligible for the tax credit in the 2008 taxation year  
and subsequently.

While 2008 hardly appears to be shaping up as easy on the eco-
nomic front, our portfolio has been refocused, in particular by the 
substantial reduction of investments in the higher-risk sectors of 
the economy. The rebalanced portfolio allows us to look to the 
coming financial years with great confidence.  

in closing, i would like to thank all shareholders of capital régional  
et coopératif Desjardins for the trust they show year after year in 
purchasing shares of a fund whose mission it is to drive the Québec 
economy. i would also like to express my gratitude for the excel-
lent work of the teams that contribute so much to our company’s 
success: our manager, Desjardins venture capital; the Desjardins  
Business centres, who collaborate with us to identify and realize  
potential investments; the Desjardins caisse network, which handles  
sales of our shares each year; the different Fédération teams  
for their continued support; and Desjardins Trust, our trustee and 
asset custodian.

Bruno Morin
general Manager
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2007 was a tough year for many Québec businesses, particularly in the 
manufacturing sector. Operations faced three challenges—a spike in 
the canadian dollar, an upsurge in oil prices and stiff competition from 
emerging countries. and these shifts converged so abruptly that it was 
difficult for entrepreneurs to predict or prepare for them. 

The manufacturing sector accounts for nearly 15% of the Québec 
economy. and despite the overall robustness of the canadian economy,  
we have felt the hit of these emerging trends. job cuts have already been 
announced and it is a safe bet that there are more to come in 2008.

against this backdrop, the Desjardins venture capital teams have 
strengthened their resolve to support, finance and work hand in 
hand with Québec businesses and cooperatives to assure them of the  
production efficiencies they need to weather the storm. even in 
this challenging period, it is still possible for Québec businesses to 
make their mark through innovation, anticipating and responding  
to evolving customer needs with tailored product offerings and  
leveraging market fragmentation with mass customization. While  
the appeal of the u.S. export market is dampened by the strength of 
the loonie against the greenback, other markets, including europe, may 
offer greener pastures, particularly as our dollar has not appreciated  
against the euro. 

another challenge facing the Québec economy is the transfer of  
business ownership. an entire generation of entrepreneurs is looking 
toward retirement over the next few years. Often, family members  
or the management team are ready and able to take the helm 
but lack the necessary funds to buy back the business. We must  
ensure that the economy weathers the departure of these founders  
without over-leveraging and weakening the businesses they have built.  
This is a daunting challenge across all Québec regions. external  
buyback typically goes hand in hand with head office relocation  
which, in turn, shuts down a host of secondary service industries that 
drive regional economies. 

entrepreneurship grows by example and businesses that go through 
transfer of ownership will have valuable lessons in succession planning  
to pass on to the next generation. Desjardins is a key player in this  
transition period, as we work with the businesses that will drive 
the Québec economy forward and serve as an example for those  
to come. 

in keeping with our management mandate for capital régional et 
coopératif Desjardins, the Desjardins venture capital teams put 
their talent and creativity to work for Québec businesses, whether  
helping them realize growth projects or assuring their continuity based 
on successful transfer of ownership. Four lines of business are in place 
to meet business needs: venture capital, development capital, coopera-
tive and resource region capital, and major investments and company 
buyout. The last and most recent, created last spring, is designed to 
ease transfer of ownership from one generation of entrepreneurs to 
the next, to assist in the continued growth of profitable businesses and 
to consolidate promising sectors while retaining Québec ownership.

Our teams re-engineered the capital régional et coopératif Desjardins 
portfolio in 2007. The new approach opens the door to broader-based 
development support for Québec businesses. Our business partners 
can be assured that all possible tools and resources are at their disposal 
to build operational success. 

and a new strategy has been crafted for the biotechnology industry—
particularly in therapeutics—to meet its specific business and sectoral 
needs. an agreement is being finalized with an international manager 
whose global network of contacts will dramatically increase options 
for our biotechnology businesses and optimize investment potential 
for capital régional et coopératif Desjardins. News of the pending 
agreement has been well-received as businesses see the potential for 
exponential business growth. 

For us, the bottom line is continuous innovation with a view to  
developing Québec businesses and cooperatives to their fullest. The 
flexibility of venture capital allows us to craft scenarios that combine 
various financial vehicles and products. The synergy between the  
different arms of Desjardins group is a huge plus in this regard! and 
the Desjardins venture capital offering is a perfect complement to 
that of Desjardins Business centres—which means one-stop service 
for businesses and cooperatives in every region of Québec.

louis l. Roquet
President and chief Operating Officer
Desjardins venture capital

ManageR’s RePoRt

FosterIng InnovatIon and creatIvIty— 
key to success In the current envIronment
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suPPoRtIng RegIonal vItalIty:  
an ongoIng PRIoRIty
To meet the growing financial needs of businesses and cooperatives 
in all Québec regions, capital régional can count on its manager,  
Desjardins venture capital, with teams in 24 offices and on the comple-
mentary dynamics of 50-some Desjardins Business centres. Desjardins 
is therefore uniquely positioned to offer a complete range of varied 
financing products, all under one roof.

as at December 31, 2007, the capital régional portfolio represented 
$470 million in authorized investments in 195 businesses and coopera-
tives. investments authorized during the year totalled $88 million allo-
cated across 77 companies. Some of these are particularly noteworthy 
as they contributed to economic vitality in a number of regions, and 
confirmed the support of the entire Desjardins organization for dynamic  
businesses such as: 

n gestion c.T.M.a. in Îles-de-la-Madeleine, a management company 
held by the coopérative de Transport Maritime et aérien (c.T.M.a. 
group), whose subsidiaries provide marine and road transportation 
services to islanders. The investment was processed jointly with the 
étang-du-Nord office of the gaspésie/Îles-de-la-Madeleine Desjardins  
Business centre and the Îles-de-la-Madeleine caisse Desjardins.

n Héli explore of la Sarre, which provides helicopter transportation 
and logistics advisory services adapted mainly to the needs of the 
canadian mining exploration industry. This financing was arranged 
together with the abitibi-Ouest Desjardins Business centre.

n Mirazed in valcourt, which specializes in promotional and industrial 
silk screening and large scale digital printing. This transaction was 
handled with the Windsor office of the eastern Townships Desjardins  
Business centre.

n Tungle in Montréal, which develops effective calendar coordinators 
that simplify meeting arrangements between users across businesses.

fInancIng foR a sMootH tRansfeR
There are a number of ways for an entrepreneur to ensure the 
smooth transfer of a business. The entrepreneur may, for example, 
hand the reins to one or more family members or to a management  
team which already has an excellent grasp of the specifics of the  
business and its environment. establishing a cooperative of employee 
shareholders can also help to finance a portion of the transfer trans-
action, while encouraging employee involvement in share capital and 
loyalty to the business. 

in terms of succession planning, the range of business ownership 
transfer solutions and advisory services offered under the continuum 
financing program generated interest among entrepreneurs. Seven-
teen continuum financing deals totalling $37 million were authorized 
in 2007, including nine jointly with a Desjardins Business centre and  
two with a caisse Desjardins. For examples: autobus Thomas in  
Drummondville, ebi-tech in Thetford Mines, Fempro in Drummondville,  
groupe composites vci in Matane, Hôtel Forestel val D’Or, and  
Marquis imprimeur in cap St-ignace.

WHen ManageRs take tHe HelM
Nothing is more reassuring for an entrepreneur thinking of retirement 
than to see his business continue to grow in the hands of managers 
who already know it well and who have always taken its success and 
development to heart. in this regard, we want to underscore two  
examples over recent months of the financing of transfer of ownership 
to managers:

in 2006, having seen two successive transfers of ownership between 
family members, alain gagné, sole shareholder of viandes cDS in  
chicoutimi, initiates steps to transfer his business to jean Dostie, then 
general Manager for two years and Brigitte Boily, then Plant Manager 
for three years. Having held similar positions during their respective 
careers, both have solid experience in their fields. alain gagné remains 
active in the business, serving as technical advisor, which will allow him 
to work with the purchasers over the next few years. 

InvestMents
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viandes cDS is involved in ham and delicatessen meat production, 
cutting beef and pork, and also offers meat by-products. it distri butes  
its products both locally and nationally, particularly through major 
food wholesalers. With a mature distribution network, the business 
continues to grow with large chains and focuses on the diversification 
of its customer base. 

viandes cDS has a dedicated, competent team of employees, some 
of whom have been with the company from the very start. in 2007, 
the business concentrated its efforts on purchasing new equipment to 
reduce costs and improve productivity, which contributed to assuring 
excellent profitability.  

For more than three years, Pierre goulet, majority shareholder, had been 
implementing a succession plan aimed at allowing the management team 
of Marquis imprimeur and infoscan collette to purchase the businesses. 
Over the past two years, management responsibilities had been trans-
ferred to Pierre Fréchette, vice-president, Operations and Serge loubier, 
vice-president, Sales and Marketing. These managers were now ready to 
take the next step, the purchase of the two operating businesses. 

Marquis imprimeur is a leader in the printing of short-run books. 
infoscan collette provides layout and graphic production services to 
publishing houses, as well as pre-press services to Marquis imprimeur.

capital régional’s decision to support the financing of this transfer was 
based on the fact that over the years, the company had carved out a 
market niche and become a leader thanks to a solid historic reputation  
and a quality product. The financing package was carried out jointly 
with the côte-du-Sud Desjardins Business centre. joining the two  
managers already identified as purchasers, was Marc Deslisle, a former 
shareholder and a long-standing manager of the company. 

The new purchasers have environmental initiatives a high priority, 
particularly encouraging customers to use recycled paper for all their 
orders. They also favour using digital equipment, as this technology is 
well-suited to short run printing.
 

bRIDgIng tWo geneRatIons  
In a sPIRIt of contInuIty  

in spring 2007, the manager established its Major investments and 
company Buyout line of business in response to the growing socio-
economic phenomenon of the transfer of business ownership. 
Specifically, this line of business bridges two generations of 
entrepreneurs: the generation that is ready for handover and the  
generation that is ready but not necessarily financially able to take 
the helm right away. Side by side with these dynamic entrepreneurs, 
Desjardins venture capital wants to share in the sustained growth  
of profitable businesses to ensure their continuity or to consolidate 
promising sectors, while retaining Québec ownership. in partnership 
with the company’s management, capital régional made its first 
buyout, that of Fempro in Drummondville. This transaction allowed the 
owners to retire, while the business continued to grow and develop. 

Fempro is the largest canadian manufacturer—and the second-largest  
North american manufacturer—of private label feminine hygiene  
products. The company manufactures and distributes its own complete  
range of sanitary napkins under the incognito label, the second- 
highest selling national brand in Québec. employing over 130 people 
in the region, Fempro also manufactures liquid absorbent mats for 
food trays, a packaging product used primarily for meat, poultry and 
fish in the refrigerated displays of our grocery stores.

serge cousineau, general manager, caisse desjardins de drummondville 
and director, capital régional et coopératif desjardins, louis l. roquet, 
president and chief operating officer, desjardins venture capital,  
sylvie lemaire, co-founder of Fempro, Jean Fleury, president and general 
manager of Fempro and yves gagné, vice-president, major Investments 
and company buyout, desjardins venture capital.
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a foRestRy cooPeRatIve faces  
Many cHallenges

Financial support fitted to the realities of the cooperative sector—that  
is what distinguishes our cooperative offering. 2007 was a particu-
larly difficult year in the forest sector; many of these businesses had 
to be creative and innovative to meet the challenges they faced.  
The coopérative forestière de girardville is a good example.

all of Desjardins’ consulting expertise, particularly that of Desjardins  
venture capital and the Maria-chapdelaine Desjardins Business  
centre, together with that of the cooperative, was brought to bear on 
a repositioning exercise. Working jointly with the Board of Directors, 
they began by hiring a new general Manager and a new manage-
ment team; young, dynamic and well-versed in their field. Next, they 
encouraged the cooperative to refocus on its primary market and to 
concentrate on its specialty: forest landscaping, including harvesting 
and silviculture. 

On another front, the general Manager returned from a trip to 
Sweden with new, cutting-edge techniques. The team adapted them 
to the Québec market, transforming their cooperative into one of 
the strongest performers in the field of silviculture in Québec. Their  
financial results are the envy of many cooperatives. jérôme Simard, 
general Manager of the cooperative, described his satisfaction with the  
support received throughout the process, “Throughout our restruc-
turing process, Desjardins was at our side to help us consolidate, and 
more than that, to grow within our original field of expertise. Their 
support was first and foremost financial, but this was complemented 
with expert advice and invaluable follow-up by competent personnel.  
Desjardins venture capital and the Maria-chapdelaine Desjardins  
Business centre demonstrated their confidence in us and gave us the 
leeway we needed—these were sure keys to success. i want to thank the 
entire Desjardins team with whom we did business. They contributed  
to showcasing the expertise of our team.”

HonouRs to ouR PaRtneR coMPanIes
for successful transfer of business ownership 
Two Québec businesses, Placage au chrome in Ste-Foy and RMH  
industries, held by gestion Placage RMH inc., were honoured with the  
Trophée Vision 2007 in the Entreprise visionnaire category for successful 
transfers of business ownership, either intergenerational or by employee 
buyout, awarded by the Ordre des comptables agréés du Québec  
and the Chambre de commerce de Québec. The same two businesses 
received the Desjardins Business Ownership Transfer Prize in the 2007 
edition of the Desjardins Business Prize awards.

for manpower training  
Premier aviation centre de révision in Trois-Rivières was awarded 
the Prix Hommage in the Formation de la main-d’œuvre category 
at the Gala Radisson Édition 2007 of the Chambre de commerce et 
d’industrie de Trois-Rivières. The prize salutes the business that shows 
consistent effort in manpower training programs and contributes to 
job retention and creation. 

for funeral cooperative of the year
Following the official opening of the complexe funéraire de l’estrie, 
the coopérative funéraire de l’estrie received the Coopérative de 
l’année prize from the Fédération des coopératives funéraires du  
Québec at their recent provincial conference. To carry out its project, 
the cooperative was able to gain the support of its members through 
preferred equity subscriptions valued at over $800,000. 

for It personality of the year
The Fédération de l’informatique du Québec (FIQ) awarded the  
Personnalité de l’année en technologies de l’information au Québec 
prize to Rémi Racine, President and chief executive Officer of artificial 
Mind and Movement (a2M) at the OCTAS 2007 gala. The prize pays 
tribute to an individual who has been of note in the Québec iT and 
communications sector.

for youth leadership
During the arista competition gala of the Jeune Chambre de  
Commerce de Montréal, jean-Philippe gentès, general Manager of 
galenova, was awarded the Prix Jeune Leader Novateur du Québec, 
which encourages the creativity and boldness of young business  
leaders. Rémi Racine, of artificial Mind and Movement (a2M) received 
the Prix Performance Jeune Leader awarded by Réseau ESG UQAM to 
graduates of the École des sciences de la gestion for their outstanding 
career progress. 

“We spent over 20 years of our life building this business with 
our employees. it was essential for us to keep our employees 
and our business in the region. We are very proud to work 
with a partner like Desjardins which shares our values. Our  
greatest concern was ensuring ongoing operations in a spirit of  
continuity. We had to find a financial partner who would  
respect our people, what we have built and the growth  
objectives we have set for ourselves. From this point of 
view, the choice of Desjardins seemed self-evident,” stated  
Sylvie lemaire and Ronald Tremblay, founders of Fempro.  
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PRIx cooPÉRatIves to tHe cooPÉRatIve  
De tRavaIlleuRs actIonnaIRe De tec  
In MontRÉal
Tec designs information systems allowing its clients to save time 
and money in the software acquisition process. The establishment of  
an employee shareholder cooperative, which holds 27% of the  
business, provided exceptional leverage, allowing employees to  
combine their efforts, and to increase their personal, collective and 
corporate wealth.  

PRIx entRePRIses InDustRIelles et De seRvIces 
to canMec gRouP of saguenay
canmec group provides design, manufacturing, installation and 
construction services to the industrial sector. in 2004, the company’s 
buyout by five of its managers allowed the business to remain in the 
region. Today, canmec group is enjoying remarkable growth. in 2006, 
one of the company’s achievements was a world first: the development  
of a new construction and delivery model for ring busbars used in 
aluminum smelters.  

PRIx entRePRIses Des nouvelles tecHnologIes 
to aRtIfIcIal MInD anD MoveMent (a2M)  
In MontRÉal
a2M is the largest independent video game developer in canada and 
one of the largest in North america. With nearly 430 employees, a2M 
is noteworthy for the quality of the games it develops, particularly  
action and adventure games, releasing close to 40 titles over 15 years 
of operation. in 2006, a2M was ranked among the 50 fastest growing 
and best managed technology companies in canada.

PRIx couP De cœuR to RePRoDuctIons blb  
In boucHeRvIlle
Founded in 1979, this business manufactures pressure sensitive 
labels, and plastic and metal identification or signal plates. in 2004, 
two 30-year old entrepreneurs purchased the company to ensure its  
continuity. in view of the issues facing Québec SMes, they have  
carried on the activities of this manufacturing business—which is  
now enjoying commendable growth—with flare.  

caPItal RÉgIonal unveIls tHe fIRst  
WInneRs of tHe bRuno RIveRIn aWaRDs

to pay posthumous homage to thIs pIoneer who was one oF the artIsans behInd the 
company’s creatIon and development, the board oF dIrectors unveIled the FIrst wInners 
oF the bruno rIverIn awards. these awards are bestowed on companIes and cooperatIves 
In our portFolIo In recognItIon oF outstandIng perFormance. 



3

4

 caPiTal RégiONal eT cOOPéRaTiF DeSjaRDiNS 11

1    PRIx cooPÉRatIves to tHe cooPÉRatIve De tRavaIlleuRs actIonnaIRe De tec In MontRÉal 
andré lachapelle, chairman of the board, capital régional et coopératif desjardins, louis l. roquet, 
president and chief operating officer, desjardins venture capital, richard bourgouin, special projects 
manager and pascal perry, president, coopérative de travailleurs actionnaire de tec, winner of the  
prix coopératives, and alban d’amours, president and chief executive officer, desjardins group.

2    PRIx entRePRIses InDustRIelles et De seRvIces to canMec gRouP of saguenay 
carole voyzelle, director, capital régional et coopératif desjardins, rémi roy, president,  
canmec group, winner of the prix entreprises industrielles et de services and alban d’amours.

3    PRIx entRePRIses Des nouvelles tecHnologIes to aRtIfIcIal MInD anD MoveMent (a2M)  
In MontRÉal 
andré lachapelle, louis l. roquet, rémi racine, president, artificial mind and movement (a2m),  
winner of the prix entreprises en nouvelles technologies and alban d’amours.

4    PRIx couP De cœuR to RePRoDuctIons blb In boucHeRvIlle 
hugo leclair and rené-pierre roussel, directors, les reproductions blb, winner of the prix coup de coeur, 
with alban d’amours.

a work by Québec artist  
jacinthe Bruneau inspired by one  
of Bruno Riverin’s passions—music.
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boaRD of DIRectoRs  
of caPItal RÉgIonal  
et cooPÉRatIf DesjaRDIns 
(as at February 14, 2008)
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tHe coMPany’s busIness Is ManageD by a boaRD of DIRectoRs  
MaDe uP of tHe folloWIng PeRsons:

1     anDRÉ lacHaPelle (2) (4) 
chairman of the Board of Directors  
Notary with gagnon, cantin,  
lachapelle, Sasseville, éthier, Riopel, 
Hébert, lord

2     yves lavoIe (2) * 
vice-chairman of the Board  
of Directors 
corporate Director

3     gIlbeRt beaulIeu (4) 
Secretary of the Board of Directors 
general Manager, caisse Desjardins  
de vaudreuil-Dorion

4     bRuno MoRIn  
general Manager of the company 
Senior vice-President, investment Funds 
and Trust Services, Fédération des  
caisses Desjardins du Québec

5     loRRaIn baRRette, fca (1) 
President, caisse Desjardins de  
Rouyn-Noranda

6     jean boIsveRt (1) ** 
President, Solvteq inc.

7     ÉvangÉlIste bouRDages (3) 
President, gestion Bourgade inc.

8     seRge cousIneau (2) 
general Manager, caisse Desjardins  
de Drummondville

9     caMIlle foRtIeR (4) 
corporate Director

10    josÉe foRtIn, M.b.a. (3) 
vice-President, industrial Division,  
julien inc.

11    PIeRRe gauvReau, fca (1) (3) 
corporate Director

12    Hugues st-PIeRRe (1) 
corporate Director

13    caRole voyzelle (2) 
President and general Manager,  
Québec Metro High Tech Park 

(1)  Member of the audit committee 
(2)  Member of the executive committee
(3)   Member of the ethics and Professional 

conduct committee
(4)   Member of the investment committee
*     Outgoing director eligible for election at the 

annual general Meeting of Shareholders.
**  Outgoing director.

all Directors are appointed or elected each year, 
in accordance with the company’s incorporating 
act and general Bylaws. The Board of Directors 
consists primarily of independent members.

company dIrectors and commIttee members:   
attendance and compensatIon For 2007

names
 board of
 Directors

 executive
 committee

 audit
 committee

 Investment
 committee

 ethics and Professional
 conduct committee

 compensation

   (number of meetings)  (7 meetings)  (7 meetings)  (6 meetings)  (4 meetings)  (6 meetings) *

Barrette, lorrain  7  6  $20,400

Beaulieu, gilbert  6  3  $18,500

Boisvert, jean  7  5  $20,200

Bourdages, évangéliste  6  6  $26,700

cousineau, Serge  7  6  $20,700

Fortier, camille  7  4  $20,000

Fortin, josée  7  4  $20,000

gauvreau, Pierre  7  6  4  $28,600

lachapelle, andré  7  7  4  $41,200

laflamme, jean  4  $7,000

landry, jean-luc  4  $7,000

lavoie, Yves  7  7  $20,900

Morin, Bruno (1)  5  $10,000

Roquet, louis l. (2)  3  $6,500

St-Pierre, Hugues  6  5  $18,900

voyzelle, carole  7  7  $20,600

 total coMPensatIon  $307,200

notes 
* includes two training sessions for directors and committee members. 
(1)  an annual lump sum of $10,000 is allocated to the general Manager and paid to Fédération des caisses Desjardins du Québec. 

The company pays no other compensation of any kind to the general Manager.
(2) compensation paid to Desjardins venture capital.
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this financial Review seeks to provide an in-depth understanding of the operations of capital régional et coopératif  

Desjardins (the “company”). It should be read in conjunction with the audited annual financial statements and the 

accompanying notes. this disclosure document contains management’s analysis of forward-looking statements.  

caution should be exercised in the interpretation of this analysis and these statements since management often 

makes reference to objectives and strategies that contain risks and uncertainties. 

Due to the nature of the company’s operations, the associated risks and uncertainties could cause actual results to 

differ from those anticipated in forward-looking statements. the company disclaims any intention or obligation  

to update or revise such statements based on any new information or event that may occur.

The company ended fiscal 2007 with a net loss of $22.2 million and 
a negative return of 3.2%, thereby reducing net value per common 
share from $10.21 to $9.89 based on the number of common shares 
outstanding at year-end. Fiscal 2006 had closed with a net loss of 
$10.2 million and a negative return of 1.6%. a total of $101.8 million 
of capital was raised and net assets reached $732.5 million, up 11.9% 
over 2006. in recognition of the company’s achievements since incep-
tion, the Québec government adopted new measures in fall 2007. 
under these new measures, the company will have access to sufficient 
and permanent capitalization as well as investment standards adapted 
to market realities to fulfil its mission to foster the development of 
Québec cooperatives and businesses. Shareholders totalled 120,652 as 
at December 31, 2007, up 2.0% from 2006. The cost of investments 
impacting the Québec economy made or committed reached nearly 
$470 million, of which more than $396 million were disbursed.

coMPany’s RetuRn

 annual RetuRn

2007  -3.2% 

2006  -1.6% 

2005  1.2% 

2004  0.0% 

2003  1.7% 

2002  1.9% 

2001 (57 days)  0.0% 

 aveRage of  
 annual RetuRns*

Since inception  0.0%

*arithmetic mean of annual returns

2007 fInancIal RevIeW

RetuRn by  
actIvIty

 2007      2006 RestateD*

 average  
 assets under 
 management

 Weighting  Return  contribution
 average  
 assets under 
 management

 Weighting  Return  contribution

 $M  %  %  %  $M  %  %  %
investment portfolio  341  49.9  -4.6  -2.3  286  46.4  -1.4  -0.6

liquid portfolio  342  50.1  3.1  1.6  330  53.6  4.4  2.5

 683  100.0  -0.7  -0.7  616  100.0  1.9  1.9

expenses, net of 
membership dues  -3.4  -3.4  -3.5  -3.5

income taxes and 
capital tax  0.9  0.9  0.0  0.0

company’s return  -3.2  -3.2  -1.6  -1.6

*See explanations under accounting Policies - consolidation
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RetuRn by  
asset class

 2007  2006 RestateD*

 average  
 assets under 
 management

 Weighting  Return  contribution
 average  
 assets under 
 management

 Weighting  Return  contribution

 $M  %  % %  $M  %  %  %

investment portfolio

venture capital  113  16.5  -16.0  -2.8  106  17.2  -4.0  -0.7

cooperatives and 
Resource Regions  105  15.4  -5.4  -0.8  91  14.8  -3.6  -0.5

Development capital  48  7.0  13.0  0.8  34  5.5  4.9  0.3

Major investments 
and company Buyout  75  11.0  4.7  0.5  55  8.9  2.7  0.3

liquid portfolio

Fixed-income 
securities  334  48.9  3.2  1.5  330  53.6  4.4  2.5

Fund of hedge funds  8  1.2  6.3  0.1  –  –  –  –

 683  100.0  -0.7  -0.7  616  100.0  1.9  1.9

*See explanations under accounting Policies - consolidation

The company’s return is mainly attributable to the contribution of  
investment and liquid portfolio activities. assets allocated to investment  
activities are focused primarily on fulfillment of the company’s eco-
nomic development mission in all Québec regions. They are allocated  
across four lines of business and consist mainly of equities and  
debentures. This activity ended 2007 with a negative return of 4.6%  
compared with a negative return of 1.4% in 2006. While the  
Development capital and Major investments and company Buyout  
lines posted positive returns, the performance of the venture capital  
and cooperatives and Resource Regions lines resulted in negative  
overall return for investment activities. The main reasons for this are the 
high-risk nature of technology sector investments, the number of start-up 
businesses and the sharp appreciation in value of the canadian dollar.

The liquid portfolio activity manages the portion of assets not invested 
with partner businesses. This portfolio was established to provide secu-
rity for the company’s returns and ensure necessary liquidity. it consists 
of bonds, preferred shares and units of funds of hedge funds. This 
activity generated a return of 3.1% in 2007 compared with a return of 
4.4% in 2006, due primarily to changing capital market conditions.

cHanges In net value 
PeR coMMon sHaRe

 2007  2006
 RestateD*

 $  $

Beginning of year  10.21  10.37 

interest, dividends and
negotiation fees  0.47  0.40

Realized losses  -0.24  -0.19

changes in unrealized  
depreciations  -0.31  -0.04

expenses, net of 
membership dues  -0.35  -0.34

income taxes and capital tax  0.10  0.00

Decrease attributable 
to operations  -0.33  -0.17

Difference attributable to share
issues and redemptions  0.01  0.01

end of year  9.89  10.21 

*See explanations under accounting Policies - consolidation
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as at December 31, 2007, the company was in compliance with all 
the requirements of its incorporating act. The company’s top priorities 
continue to contribute significantly to Québec’s economic development 
while generating attractive returns and reducing the risk of capital  
losses for its shareholders.

The tax credit, which reduces the cost of acquiring shares, must be 
factored in. a share purchased for $10 in 2001 would provide the  
investor with an annual compound return net of tax on the order  
of 9.5%, if redeemed for $9.89 following the seven-year holding period.

Balanced allocation across asset classes coupled with ongoing efforts 
to enhance partner business valuations within the portfolio of invest-
ments impacting the Québec economy will allow the company to  
provide its shareholders attractive long-term returns.

economIc background

The canadian economy saw relatively sustained growth in 2007.  
consumer spending rose rapidly, more than offsetting falling exports 
as the manufacturing sector struggled with the negative impact of the 
strong dollar and increased global competition. However, the disparities  
in economic performance between central and Western canada  
remained high and difficulties in the manufacturing sector resulted in 
many job cuts in Ontario and Québec. 

canadian monetary authorities began to show concern over a possible 
upturn in inflation in canada in spring 2007; in july, they announced 
a 25 basis-point rise in key interest rates. 

economic conditions shifted as we moved into fall. Signs of a correction  
in the u.S. real estate market became increasingly tangible and 
the subprime lending difficulties in the united States were echoed 
around the world. This became a full-blown crisis whose effects are  
still felt and which prompted a re-assessment of the risks associated 
with financial products. The difficulty in accessing credit on inter-
national financial markets drove the u.S. Federal Reserve to lower its 
target rate at its meeting in September. 

The growing spread between canadian and u.S. short-term interest 
rates together with the rising cost of raw materials, particularly oil, 
pushed the canadian dollar to new heights in the fall. in December, 
the combination of the asset-backed commercial paper crisis, the  
increasingly noticeable slowdown of the u.S. economy, the possi-
bility of tightened credit terms and the sharp rise of the loonie, led  
canadian monetary authorities to lower its key interest rate by 25 basis 
points. This adjustment slowed the appreciation of the loonie, which 
had stabilized at year-end at near parity with the u.S. greenback.

in 2007, the spike in the canadian dollar affected the performance of 
the company’s investment portfolio. The strain has been felt by a num-
ber of export manufacturing businesses. another key factor were the 
difficulties experienced in various sectors tied to regional development,  
particularly the forest industry and the slowing construction sector.

outlook
Recent shifts in economic indicators point to a continuation during  
the first half of 2008 of the darkening economic outlook we have  
seen since fall 2007. While a recession may still be avoided, the u.S. 
economic growth rate will slow considerably in coming months.  
Reduced household wealth due to falling housing prices and the  
recent drop in market indexes will put the brakes on consumer spending  
capacity. The central banks will have no option but to lower their key 
interest rates to restore credit terms to more favourable levels.

Subject to some volatility due to oil prices, raw materials and the  
interest-rate gap with the u.S., our dollar is likely to soften early in the 
year and then reach parity with the greenback for the rest of 2008.

The future seems brighter for the company’s business partners who 
manage to withstand the loonie’s sharp rise and difficulties in the 
manufacturing sector. in addition to enhancing their market share, 
they will be able to capitalize on lower equipment costs to increase 
productivity. They will also have the opportunity to take part in the 
consolidation of certain industry segments. 
 
ventuRe caPItal MaRket
Québec continued to attract the lion’s share of venture capital activity,  
with more than 31% of total canadian investment and 46% of 
businesses financed. For the third straight year, the Québec venture 
capital industry saw greater activity reaching the highest level in five 
years. investments grew by 8% for a total of $648 million across 189  
businesses. The life sciences sector once again attracted the major 
share, 40%, of all investments in Québec. information technology 
activities remained stable, reaching close to a third of investments. 
Telecommunications led investments in this sector in 2007.

investment in the energy and green technology sectors more than 
tripled over 2006, reaching $59 million across 13 companies. environ-
mental technology activity was the highest ever reported in Québec.
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expanding or advanced development stage Québec businesses were 
the focus of venture capital activity in 2007, with two thirds of all 
investment. Overall, pre-startup and startup activities represented 
only 11% of all investments, which might be worrisome as these  
investments foster the development of tomorrow’s leaders.

u.S. and foreign funds continue to grow with over 32% of total  
capital invested in Québec. 

coMPany stRategy
in 2007, the Desjardins venture capital team consolidated major  
investments and company buyout into one line of business. Besides 
being better fitted to the realities of the venture capital industry, the 
transfer of business ownership phenomenon and the needs of entre-
preneurs, this approach was also closely aligned with the venture  
capital market trend toward a substantial portion of investment in 
more mature and in growing businesses. This type of investment is 
also less risky and generates positive returns more quickly.

in keeping with this approach, major investments focus on invest-
ments between $5 million and $20 million to support businesses with 
growth or acquisition projects. Major investments represent a minority 
interest in the share capital of these businesses. The company buy-
out mission is majority interest investment in the share capital of a  
business with a view to allowing either a potential acquiror or an 
existing management team to continue to operate the business. This 
approach gives seasoned managers who are ready to take the helm of 
a business access to financial resources to maintain not only jobs but 
the businesses themselves in the regions where they grew.

accountIng polIcIes

consolIDatIon
Since july 4, 2005, the company has presented its financial statements  
on a consolidated basis with those of Desjardins – innovatech, a 
limited partnership established with Société innovatech Régions  
ressources. This consolidation was required under the “investment 
companies” (acg-18) accounting guideline. During the fiscal year, 
the canadian institute of chartered accountants (cica) modified 
acg-18 criteria for identifying entities that must be consolidated.  
Desjardins – innovatech S.e.c. does not meet the new criteria. For 
this reason, the company’s interest in Desjardins – innovatech S.e.c. 
is now presented at fair value under the heading investments and 
the financial statements are no longer presented on a consolidated 
basis. The financial statements and financial reporting in their Financial  
Review for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 have been restated  
to reflect these changes in accounting policies which had no impact 
on earnings or on net assets as at December 31, 2006 and 2007. 

use of estIMates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles requires management to make esti-
mates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the  
balance sheet date and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses  
during the reporting period.

The principal estimates are related to the determination of the fair 
value of investments impacting the Québec economy. actual results 
could differ from those estimates. Those estimates are reviewed  
periodically and, as adjustments become necessary, are reported in 
earnings (loss) in the period in which they are known.

The fair value of the investment portfolio impacting the Québec  
economy is determined on a semi-annual basis in accordance with 
methods recommended by the Desjardins venture capital manager’s 
Portfolio valuation committee and approved by the company’s Board  
of Directors. The manager’s management prepares a detailed valuation  
report and a team of employees specialized in business valuations  
assists in determining the fair value. in preparing analyses, management  
draws on the services of an outside business valuation expert, as needed.  
The report is then submitted to the manager’s Portfolio valuation 
committee. This committee consists of a director of the company’s 
manager, one of the company’s directors and an external member. an  
external business valuation expert also attends committee meetings. 
The committee receives and discusses the report, ensures reason-
ableness based on the advice of outside experts, as necessary, and  
makes a final recommendation to the company’s Board of Directors.

in accordance with the manager’s portfolio valuation methodology, the 
valuation technique is determined in the following order of priority:

n Based on market value for public companies for which an active 
market exists.

n Based on a recent transaction within the past 12 months, if applicable.

n Based on an alternative valuation method in other cases.

The alternative valuation method is based on the nature of the  
company’s operations, in addition to its development stage, financial 
results and the qualitative progress of its operations.
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neW accountIng stanDaRDs
in December 2006, cica issued new accounting standards entitled  
“capital Disclosures” (Section 1535), “Financial instruments –  
Disclosures” (Section 3862) and “Financial instruments – Presentation”  
(Section 3863) which will apply to the company effective january 1, 
2008. The purpose of Section 1535 is to require the disclosure of infor-
mation that enables users of financial statements to evaluate the entity’s  
objectives, policies and processes for managing capital.  it should be 
noted that Section 3861 “Financial instruments – Disclosure and  
Presentation” will be replaced by sections 3862 and 3863. These two 
sections help users to better understand and evaluate the significance of  
financial instruments for the entity’s financial position and performance,  
and to better evaluate the nature and extent of risks arising from  
financial instruments and how the entity manages those risks. Since 
these new standards specifically cover the disclosures to be provided, 
they will not affect the company’s results. 

Investment portFolIo

Disbursements of $115.3 million made during fiscal 2007, proceeds 
on disposal of $36.7 million and value depreciation of $34.1 million  
brought the fair value of the company’s investment portfolio to 
$360.8 million as at December 31, 2007. 

Since 2007, the company’s manager has allocated investment  
activities across four business lines. The venture capital line covers  
the health and biotechnology, information technology and telecom-
munication sectors. The cooperatives and Resource Regions team 
covers investments in cooperatives and all investments of less than 
$5 million in the industrial sector of the resource regions. The Develop-
ment capital team comprises investments of less than $5 million in 
the industrial sector in the balance of Québec’s administrative regions. 
lastly, the Major investments and company Buyout line comprises  
investments of more than $5 million in the industrial sector across all 
Québec regions.

as part of its business development activities, the company’s manager 
focuses from time to time on different economic sectors or lines of 
business to ensure investment portfolio balance. in order to generate 
both short and long-term returns for the company’s shareholders, the 
range of financial instruments used may also vary. 

Portfolio diversification is assessed by adding the funds committed 
but not disbursed to investments at fair value. Over the last five fiscal 
years, the investment portfolio has been allocated by line of business:
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investment activities should also be measured taking into account 
the change in funds committed but not disbursed. During 2007, new 
commitments totalled $88.2 million compared with $139.8 million 
in 2006. Disbursements of $116.8 million in 2007, higher than new 
commitments, enabled a reduction in the balance of funds committed 
but not disbursed to $73.6 million as at December 31, 2007 whereas 
it stood at $103.9 million as at December 31, 2006.

investing activities reached a recurring annual volume that will enable 
the company to continue meeting statutory investment requirements 
despite the fact that disposals of investments will be for increasingly 
higher amounts due to the weighting that debentures have assumed 
in this portfolio.

as at December 31, 2007, total commitments at cost amounted to 
$469.8 million in 195 companies and funds, of which $396.1 million 
was disbursed to 187 companies and funds within the portfolio.
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Revenue geneRateD by 
InvestMents 
(in thousands of $)

 2007  2006
 RestateD*

current revenue  18,318  11,821

Realized or unrealized 
depreciation  (34,072)  (15,771)

 (15,754)  (3,950)

*See explanations under accounting Policies - consolidation

current revenue consists of interest, dividends and negotiating fees 
related to investments. The increase in current revenue was mainly 
attributable to a higher average debenture balance, which increased 
interest revenue by more than 50% in 2007 compared with 2006.

The company accounts for its investments impacting the Québec 
economy at fair value. in fiscal 2007, two comprehensive portfolio  
reviews were carried out, with one covering the six-month period  
ended june 30 and the other covering the six-month period ended  
December 31. as a result of these reviews, 81 investments were  
revalued. considering also the impact of the loss upon disposal of 
investments impacting the Québec economy, the company recorded 
realized and unrealized depreciation of $34.1 million in its results for 
the year. 

The fair-value valuation of the investment portfolio had an unfavourable  
impact on the company’s results. given the nature of the company’s 
activities, i.e. unsecured investments in small and medium-sized 
businesses, difficulties are more likely to arise during the first years 
of an investment interest while observable successes take time and 
often reach their full potential only when an investment is realized.  
Prospects of a positive portfolio return should therefore be anticipated 
when the average age of investments reaches five to eight years. as 
at December 31, 2007, the average age of the company’s portfolio 
was less than four years. The past fiscal year has nonetheless seen a 
marked improvement in investment portfolio risk levels, due primarily 
to the company manager’s sustained focus on the valuation of partner  
businesses within the portfolio and to slowing investment in the  
venture capital line of business.

in 2008, the main goal in relation to investments will be to enhance 
the valuations of current portfolio partner companies to generate  
future portfolio value appreciation and to increase the weighting of 
the Major investments and company Buyout line of business.

lIQuId portFolIo

Managing the liquid portfolio involves the portion of assets not earmarked 
for investments impacting the Québec economy, including temporarily 
available cash resources pending their investment in companies.

           

TOTal aSSeT BReaKDOWN aS aT 
DeceMBeR 31, 2007

  investments 49.2%

  liquid portfolio 48.2%

  Other 2.6%

as at December 31, 2007, the company’s liquid portfolio (including 
cash and cash equivalents) totalled $353.7 million compared with 
$325.9 million as at December 31, 2006. These funds were invested 
mainly in fixed-income securities markets, highly liquid and low-
credit risk instruments. at the end of fiscal 2007, over 54.1% of the  
portfolio securities were government-guaranteed. The portion of  
the liquid portfolio in relation to total assets was 48% at the end 
of fiscal 2007 compared with 50% as at December 31, 2006. The  
company anticipates that this ratio will continue to decrease in 2008 
and in coming years and will gradually stabilize around 36% as  
capitalization reaches maximum limits; in keeping with its core  
mission, this will allow an increase in funds allocated to investments 
impacting the Québec economy. 

in addition to fulfilling its statutory mandate of fostering regional 
and cooperative development across Québec, the company seeks 
to maximize total returns for its shareholders while maintaining their 
capital value to maturity. using an overall portfolio management  
approach, the company manages its portfolio of investments  
impacting the Québec economy together with its liquid portfolio. as 
a result, the company’s overall investment portfolio is balanced, and 
the impact on share value of changing economic conditions over the 
entire holding period by shareholders is mitigated.

To achieve its objectives, the company has elected to use a global 
management approach. This differs from mutual fund management 
and is more similar to cash or pension fund management. under this 
approach, the average maturity of total assets is matched with the 
average maturity of expected cash outflows.
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Prior to making asset selection decisions affecting the liquid port-
folio, the company considers the statutory requirements to which it 
is subject, together with the structure of its portfolio of investments 
impacting the Québec economy. The main considerations are as  
follows:

n The company’s shareholders must hold their shares for at least  
seven years.

n The investments impacting the Québec economy have target  
maturities of five to eight years and are generally more risky and 
less liquid.

n Returns on investments in eligible entities tend to be linked to  
economic cycles.

n The company is subject to capital tax and to corporate income 
taxes.

To enhance total portfolio returns, the company’s manager is also 
authorized to take market positions using the same financial instru-
ments stipulated in the investment policy and to carry out purchase/
redemption transactions. Such trades are made in an overlay port-
folio and their potential risk limits are defined and overseen by the  
company’s investment committee (liquid portfolio) and tracked daily 
by the company’s manager. as at December 31, 2007, the company 
had no market positions. 

in 2007, an initial investment of $15 million was made in a fund  
of hedge funds to enhance the performance prospects of the liquid 
portfolio while maintaining overall risk at a reasonable level. in 2008, 
other asset classes will be contemplated.

as regards the management of its liquidities and securities investments, 
the company deals mainly with Desjardins global asset Management, 
caisse centrale Desjardins, Desjardins Securities and Desjardins Trust.

Revenue geneRateD by 
tHe lIQuID PoRtfolIo 
(in thousands of $)  2007

 
 2006
 RestateD*

current revenue  13,556  15,415 

Realized or unrealized 
appreciation (depreciation)  (2,611)  483 

 10,945  15,898 

*See explanations under accounting Policies - consolidation

current revenue consists of interest, dividends and trading activities 
on liquid portfolio investments. interest income (primarily from bonds) 
is recognized at the bond rate in effect at the acquisition date. gains 
(losses) on disposal are recorded at the date of sale and correspond to 
the difference between the proceeds on disposal and the unamortized 
cost, regardless of the unrealized appreciation (depreciation) from 
prior years, which is reversed and reflected in the change in unrealized 
appreciation (depreciation) for the current period.

This liquid portfolio provides the company with a major source  
of operating revenue even though interest rates have been low 
since the company’s inception. The portfolio’s contribution totalled  
$10.9 million in 2007 compared with $15.9 million in 2006.  
The decrease in current revenue was mainly attributable to the  
delay in 2007 capital raising which did not close until December. For 
the second consecutive year, an increase in the key interest rates in 
the first half of the year flattened out later in the year, with interest 
rates at year-end comparable to those at the beginning of the year.  
However, the tightening in credit conditions resulting from the com-
mercial paper crisis had a negative impact on the value of corporate 
securities in the liquid portfolio.

capItal raIsIng

The company sells its shares exclusively through the Desjardins 
caisse network. as at December 31, 2007, this distribution network  
consisted of 509 caisses Desjardins and 864 service centres, for a  
total of 1,373 sales outlets.

The common shares of the company are part of a continuous  
offering. However, the company is authorized to raise a maximum 
of $100 million in capital during the capitalization period ending  
February 29, 2008. For any capitalization period starting after  
February 29, 2008, the company will be able to raise a maximum  
of $150 million per capitalization period provided it has not exceeded 
$1 billion in share capital for the first time by the end of a capita li -
zation period. Beginning with the capitalization period following  
this event, the company may raise, per capitalization period, the lesser  
of $150 million and the amount of the reduction in share capital  
attributable to all of the shares the company redeemed or purchased  
by agreement during the preceding capitalization period. each 
capita lization period, which lasts 12 months, will begin on March 1 
of each year. a minimum holding period of seven years applies  
before shares are eligible for redemption. a special tax is payable by the  
company if it fails to comply with these limits and control mechanisms  
have been implemented by the company to ensure compliance.
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Since November 10, 2007, subscription of shares of the company 
entitles the investor to receive a non-refundable tax credit, which  
applies only to Québec tax, for an amount equal to 50% of all  
amounts subscribed from that date, up to a maximum tax credit of 
$2,500. For the 2007 taxation year, subscription of shares of the  
company before November 10, 2007 entitles the investor to a tax 
credit for an amount equal to 35% of amounts subscribed during the 
year prior to that date, up to a maximum of $875. 

a total of $101.8 million of capital was raised during fiscal 2007  
compared with $79.5 million for fiscal 2006 due primarily to the  
increase in tax credit from 35% in 2006 to 50% as of November 10, 
2007. The company does not expect to issue further capital during 
the current capitalization period ending February 29, 2008. Share  
capital reached $750.3 million, reflecting a total of $1.6 million in 
common share redemptions. as at December 31, 2007, the company  
had 74,097,440 common shares outstanding. The number of share-
holders reached 120,652 as at December 31, 2007 compared with 
118,250 as at December 31, 2006.

The company has a policy of reinvesting its annual income from 
its operations and not paying dividends to shareholders in order to  
increase its capital available for investment in eligible entities and  
create share appreciation.

in 2008, holders of shares issued by the company during the first 
capitalization period that ended December 31, 2001 will become  
eligible to share redemption. Note however that investors who with-
draw some or all of their shares as part of a redemption after a seven-
year holding period will not be able to claim the tax credit for any 
subscription for which the tax credit could be applied in the current or 
subsequent taxation years.

bReakDoWn of sHaReHolDeRs’ eQuIty by Issue

yeaR 
IssueD

Issue PRIce 
$

balance*
$M

yeaR of 
PotentIal 

ReDeMPtIon

2001 10.00 77.2 2008 

2002 10.00 199.1 2009 
2003 10.12 

and 10.24 
86.8 2010 

2004 10.25 97.3 2011 

2005 10.25 96.5 2012 
2006 10.37 

and 10.21 
78.9 2013 

2007 10.21 
and   9.92 

96.7 2014 

Shareholders’ equity 732.5 

*calculated at net asset value per share as at December 31, 2007

lIQuIdIty and capItal resources
During fiscal 2007, the company invested $115.3 million ($97.0 million  
in 2006) in Québec entities, primarily using cash flows from capital  
raising initiatives and from the disposal of certain investments. as 
at December 31, 2007, cash and cash equivalents amounted to  
$38.1 million compared with $20.6 million as at December 31, 2006 
due to the size of the commitments related to the investment port-
folio for which minimum payments during fiscal 2008 are estimated 
at $46.9 million. The company is of the opinion that its operating  
and financing activities would be sufficient to cover any shortfall.

given the investment management approach of matching the average 
maturity of the company’s total assets with the average maturity of its 
expected cash outflows, the company does not anticipate any shortfall 
in liquidities in the short or medium term and expects to be able to  
repurchase shares issued at least seven years earlier from those share-
holders who make such a request as of November 2008. 

eXpenses

exPenses
(in thousands of $)  2007  2006

 RestateD*

Management fees  20,613  18,623 

Other operating expenses  1,206  1,279 

Trustee fees  1,770  1,713 

Other shareholder service expenses  252  265 

capital tax  527  286 

amortization of software  338  735 

 24,706  22,901 

*See explanations under accounting Policies - consolidation

oPeRatIng exPenses
Management fees in fiscal 2007 amounted to $20.6 million, or 94.5% of 
total operating expenses of $21.8 million, compared with $18.6 million,  
or 93.5% of total operating expenses in 2006.

The billing basis is comparable from one period to another since no 
changes were made to the management agreement. Management 
fees are equivalent to 3% of the company’s annual average assets’ net 
value. The management fees incurred by the company are adjusted to 
avoid double billing on the company’s interest in certain investment 
funds. in addition, the management fee percentage will be reduced to 
2.5% as of the fiscal year following that in which the company’s net 
asset value reaches $750 million. in light of the $150 million capital 
raising authorized in 2008, the company expects that this reduced 
rate will be applicable as of fiscal 2009.
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sHaReHolDeR seRvIces
The company has appointed Desjardins Trust inc. as shareholder  
registrar and share transfer agent. Desjardins Trust also acts as an 
intermediary for various shareholder support services. Since the  
company began operations, Desjardins Trust has represented the  
largest component of the company’s shareholder services expenses. 
For fiscal 2007, Desjardins Trust’s services amounted to $1.8 million, 
or 87.5% of the company’s shareholder services expenses; this level  
is comparable to that of 2006. in the company’s view, the trustee  
fees have stabilized at a recurring level because the number of share-
holders now varies little from year to year.

The company has entrusted the Fédération des caisses Desjardins du 
Québec with the activities related to the distribution of the company’s 
shares across the Desjardins caisse network. Other than reimbursing 
certain direct expenses, no commissions or other forms of remuneration  
are payable to any person by the company as regards the distribution 
of its shares.  

caPItal tax anD IncoMe taxes
The tax liability was minimized by selecting securities eligible for a  
deduction for the purposes of the Québec capital tax while ensuring  
investment diversification and security. as at December 31, 2007, 
92.7% of the liquid portfolio consisted of eligible investments for 
Québec capital tax purposes, compared with the entire portfolio as  
at December 31, 2006. This decrease results primarily from the intro-
duction of interests in a fund of hedge funds to the liquid portfolio. 
in addition, certain investments impacting the Québec economy were 
not considered as eligible investments.

income taxes reduced the loss before income taxes by $7.1 million in 
2007 compared with a tax reduction of $0.6 million in 2006. in addi-
tion to current income taxes, future income taxes represent a major 
component of the company’s tax liability. Revenue type also has a 
significant impact since capital gains and business income are taxed 
at different rates.

statutory reQuIrements

according to the statutory requirements taking effect as of fiscal 2006, 
the company’s average investments in eligible entities must represent 
at least 60% of its average net assets for the preceding year. Further-
more, at least 35% of that percentage (60%) must be invested in  
entities in Québec’s resource regions or in eligible cooperatives. if these 
criteria were not met, the company would be subject to penalties. 

On November 9, 2007, Québec’s Ministère des Finances issued an infor-
mation bulletin that included measures designed to ease investment  
standards, particularly with respect to investments made by the company  
after November 10, 2007 otherwise than as first purchaser for the 
acquisition of securities issued by an eligible entity.  

as at December 31, 2007, the company had exceeded the statutory 
target by 15% for its aggregate eligible investments and had also  
exceeded expectations by 21% for investments in cooperatives and in 
the resource regions.

The company expects to continue meeting its investment objectives, 
in particular by maintaining a presence in all Québec regions via its 
manager’s twenty-some business offices.

in the balance sheet, the non-disbursed portion of eligible investments 
is combined with other non-eligible investments under “investments  
impacting the Québec economy,” whereas the portion of funds 
committed but not disbursed is disclosed under note 4b). Finally, a  
“Schedule of cost of investments impacting the Québec economy,” 
disclosing the investments granted to each of the partner companies, 
and a “list of investments at cost made by specialty funds and partner 
funds” are also included in this annual Report.

rIsk management

RIsk goveRnance
in keeping with the portfolio asset management approach, risks 
are managed globally, taking into account all of the company’s  
contractual commitments. in accordance with its governance Policy, the 
Board of Directors established four committees to assist in fulfilment of  
its control and monitoring responsibilities. Monitoring and control of  
different risks are allocated across the committees. Some risk govern-
ance responsibilities are assumed by the company’s manager

executive committee
The executive committee is authorized to exercise all of the Board’s 
powers with respect to the management of the company’s business, 
except those statutory powers that must be exercised by the Board.  
in addition to specific mandates assigned from time to time by  
the Board of Directors, the executive committee is responsible for  
supervision of the annual review process regarding the effectiveness of  
the Board of Directors and its committees and the performance of the  
directors. The committee is also mandated to interpret and apply  
the purchase-by-agreement policy and make recommendations con-
cerning it to the Board of Directors. Furthermore, it reviews quarterly 
reports from the company’s manager concerning high-risk files and 
the corrective measures taken.
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Investment committee
The investment committee recommends investment strategies and 
risk management limits for the liquid portfolio. The committee also 
oversees compliance with the investment policy approved by the Board 
of Directors. The committee ensures that the necessary oversight 
measures are taken to ensure the proper execution of the manager’s 
mandate. it also reviews results and recommends corrective action, as 
applicable, to the Board of Directors.

audit committee
The audit committee consists exclusively of members who are inde-
pendent and is responsible for monitoring the financial reporting  
process. To this end, the committee reviews the quarterly, semi-annual 
and annual financial statements for approval by the Board of Directors, 
financial reporting, internal control systems, monitoring of risks related  
to financial reporting, internal and external audit processes, procedural  
implementations, regulatory compliance and any other responsibility 
assigned by the Board of Directors.

in addition, the committee oversees the independence of the external 
auditors and the Desjardins group’s internal auditor, who serves as the 
company’s internal auditor.

ethics and Professional conduct committee
The ethics and Professional conduct committee consists exclusively  
of members who are independent. The committee considers all matters  
pertaining to the company’s code of ethics and Professional conduct  
and ensures compliance with the contract awarding and review  
rules therein. it is responsible for reviewing potential conflicts and 
making appropriate recommendations to the Board of Directors. it 
seeks assurances from the company’s manager that the company’s  
dedicated resources are familiar with the code’s requirements and  
that the mechanisms are in place to detect and resolve any ethical 
issues. it also reviews candidates’ eligibility for the two directorships 
to be voted on by the Meeting of Shareholders and determines the 
independence of each director on an annual basis.

Manager’s Investment committees 
The company’s manager has set up investment committees to evaluate  
and approve purchases/sales of interests in companies consistent with  
the policies and strategic plan defined by the company’s Board of  
Directors. These committees also perform a quarterly review of invest-
ment portfolio quality.

MaRket RIsk
Market risks pertain to the company’s role in the capital markets and, 
indirectly, to general changes in economic conditions. They also per-
tain to the impact of capital market movements on the value of the 
company’s assets. The market risks directly impacting the company 
are as follows:

Interest Rate Risk  
interest rate fluctuations have a significant impact on the market value 
of fixed-income securities held in the portfolio. This impact has been 
more apparent since 2005 as a result of the adoption of the fair value 
accounting method for investments. a 1% increase in interest rates 
would have resulted in a 1.2% decrease in the company’s share price 
as at December 31, 2007. Similarly, a 1% decrease in interest rates 
would have had the opposite effect, resulting in a 1.3% increase in 
share price.

currency Risk
changes in currency values have an impact on several companies  
with which the company is associated. However, the net effect of 
an appreciation in the canadian dollar is not necessarily negative for 
these companies. While it has an adverse effect on certain exporters, it 
can also be beneficial for companies that import a significant portion 
of their inputs or for companies that seize the opportunity to acquire 
equipment in order to drive future productivity. 

currency fluctuations impact the fair value of investments valued  
initially in foreign currencies and subsequently translated into canadian  
dollars at the prevailing rate of exchange. These investments 
whose value varies in step with fluctuations in the value of the u.S.  
dollar represent a fair value of $38.1 million as at December 31, 2007, 
compared with $44.4 million as at December 31, 2006. in December 
2007, the company authorized the implementation of a systematic 
hedging strategy against the foreign exchange risk related to existing 
investments with exit horizons of more than 12 months, as well as 
for any new foreign exchange position. This strategy will be phased 
in during 2008.
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stock Market Risk
Stock market trends have a twofold impact on the company. in addi-
tion to the direct impact on the market values of publicly traded 
stocks, the valuations of some private portfolio companies may also 
be affected by changes in stock prices.

in accordance with the company’s global asset management approach,  
the overall impact of these interrelated risks is taken into account 
when determining overall asset allocation.

credit and counterparty Risks
in pursuing its venture capital investment mission, the company is 
exposed to credit risk related to potential financial losses of a partner 
company. By diversifying its investments by industry segment, stage 
of development and type of financial instrument, and by limiting 
the potential risk related to each individual company, the company 
keeps portfolio volatility to a minimum with respect to the potential  
occurrence of negative events.

liquid portfolio risks are managed by diversification across numerous 
issuers with a BBB credit rating or higher. counterparty risks arising 
from cash and repurchase agreement transactions are limited to the 
immediate short term.

IMPact of cReDIt anD 
counteRPaRty RIsks  
on tHe coMPany  
(as at December 31, 2007)

 % 
of asset 

class

 % 

of net 
assets

Weighting of the top five ownership 
interests (investment portfolio)  33.2  16.3 

Weighting of the top five issuers/
counterparties (liquid portfolio)*  53.8  26.0 

* government issuers accounted for 42.2% of the liquid portfolio’s five largest 
issuers or counterparties.

lIQuIDIty RIsks
The company must maintain sufficient liquid assets to fund share  
redemptions. if it failed to do so, the company would be dependent 
on the markets and could be forced to carry out transactions under 
unfavourable conditions. With liquid investments representing 36% 
of assets under management and as a result of the management  
approach, which ensures that the average maturity of assets matches 
the average maturity of expected outflows, the company can confirm 
that its management approach factors in this risk.

RegulatoRy MatteRs
The company is subject to provincial and federal laws, rules, stan-
dards, regulations and policies as well as internal rules, regulations 
and policies that provide a framework for its operations. Some risk is 
associated with the company’s ability to fulfill its obligations and to 
adapt to regulatory changes or moves to tighten existing policies.

vIsIon, mIssIon and goals

MaIn actIvItIes
On the initiative of the Desjardins group, the company was founded 
on july 1, 2001, following the adoption of its incorporating act (the 
“act”) by Québec’s National assembly on june 21, 2001. 

vIsIon
The company aims to achieve recognition as the preferred strategic 
partner of businesses by creating wealth and contributing to sustain-
able economic development across Québec.

MIssIon 
n contribute to Québec’s economic development and take an active 

part in the growth of the resource regions: abitibi-Témiscamingue, 
Bas-Saint-laurent, côte-Nord, gaspésie–Îles-de-la-Madeleine, 
Mauricie, Nord-du-Québec and Saguenay–lac-Saint-jean (the  
“resource regions”).

n inject venture capital into companies and cooperatives and provide 
expert advice to support their start-up, growth and expansion. 

n generate returns that will encourage shareholders to reinvest in  
the company.

goals
in keeping with its vision and mission, the company pursues three 
main goals:

n enhance the value of our associated companies to maximize share-
holder returns.

n Provide support and financing to underpin the continuity of  
Québec businesses, particularly by making strategic investments  
to capitalize on the consolidation of certain markets.

n Partner with the Desjardins Business centres to provide entre-
preneurs with access to one-stop traditional and venture capital  
financing services.

additional company information, including the annual information 
form, is available on the SeDaR website (www.sedar.com).

February 14, 2008
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To the Shareholders of capital régional et coopératif Desjardins

We have audited the balance sheets of capital régional et coopératif  
Desjardins (the “company”) as at December 31, 2007 and 2006 and 
the statements of earnings, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for 
the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsi bility 
of the company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with canadian generally 
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. an audit  
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. an audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation.

in our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material  
respects, the financial position of the company as at December 31, 
2007 and 2006 and the results of its operations and its cash flows 
for the years then ended in accordance with canadian generally  
accepted accounting principles.

(signed) Pricewaterhouse coopers llP

chartered accountants

The company’s financial statements together with the financial informa-
tion contained in this annual report are the responsibility of the Board of 
Directors, which delegates the preparation thereof to management.

in discharging its responsibility for the integrity and fairness of the  
financial statements, the Board of Directors has ensured that the  
manager maintains an internal control system to provide reasonable  
assurance that the financial information is reliable, that it provides an 
adequate basis for the preparation of the financial statements and that 
the assets are properly accounted for and safeguarded.

The Board of Directors discharges its responsibility for the financial  
statements principally through its audit committee. Both in the presence  
and in the absence of management, the committee meets with the 
external auditors appointed by the shareholders in order to review the 
financial statements, to discuss the audit and other related matters and 
to make appropriate recommendations to the Board of Directors. in addi-
tion, the committee meets with the company’s internal auditors. The 
committee also analyzes the Financial Review to ensure that the infor-
mation therein is consistent with the financial statements.

The financial statements present the financial information available as at 
February 14, 2008. These statements have been prepared in accordance 
with canadian generally accepted accounting principles and audited by 
Pricewaterhousecoopers llP. 

The Board of Directors has approved the financial statements, together 
with the information in the annual report. The financial information  
presented elsewhere in this report is consistent with the company’s  
financial statements.

(signed) catherine lenfant, ca

chief Financial Officer

February 14, 2008

auDItoRs’ RePoRt

February 14, 2008

ManageMent’s RePoRt
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balance sHeets 

as at december 31, 2007 and 2006 
(in thousands of dollars, except number of shares and net value per common share)

 2006
 RestateD

 2007  (note 3)
 $  $

assets

investments impacting the Québec economy (note 5)  360,782  315,700 

investments (note 6)  315,550  305,345 

accounts receivable (note 7)  7,062  5,756 

cash and cash equivalents  38,122  20,600 

Software (net of accumulated amortization of $3,240; December 31, 2006 – $2,902)  80  338 

income taxes  4,010  3,577 

Future income taxes (note 10)  8,172  4,463 

  733,778  655,779 

lIabIlItIes

accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 8)  1,249  1,159 

 1,249  1,159 

net assets  732,529  654,620 

sHaReHolDeRs’ eQuIty

Share capital (note 9)  750,345  650,197 

Retained earnings (deficit)  (17,816)  4 423 

 732,529  654,620

number of outstanding common shares  74,097,440  64,139,488 

net value per common share  9.89  10.21 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

approved by the Board of Directors,

 (signed) andré lachapelle (signed) Pierre gauvreau  
 Director Director
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stateMents of sHaReHolDeRs’ eQuIty 

For the years ended december 31, 2007 and 2006
(in thousands of dollars) 

2007

RetaIneD eaRnIngs (DefIcIt)
 share  
 capital  Realized  unrealized  total

   shareholders’ 
 equity

 $  $  $  $  $

balance – December 31, 2006  650,197   16,982   (12,559)   4,423   654,620

net loss

Realized net loss for the year, net of income
taxes of ($3,011)

 
 - 

 
 (5,687)

 
 - 

 
 (5,687)

 
 (5,687)

change in unrealized revenue for the year, 
net of income taxes of ($4,120)

 
 - 

 
 - 

 
 (16,556)

 
 (16,556)

 
 (16,556)

Net loss for the year   -   (5,687)   (16,556)   (22,243)   (22,243)

sHaRe caPItal oPeRatIons

Shares issued   101,763   -   -   -   101,763 

Redemption of shares   (1,615)   4   -   4   (1,611)

 100,148  4   -   4   100,152 

Net change for the year   100,148   (5,683)   (16,556)   (22,239)   77,909 

balance – December 31, 2007   750,345   11,299   (29,115)   (17,816)   732,529 

2006 RestateD
(note 3)

RetaIneD eaRnIngs (DefIcIt)
 share  
 capital  Realized  unrealized  total

   shareholders’ 
 equity

 $  $  $  $  $

balance – December 31, 2005  572,032   25,187   (10,504)   14,683   586,715

net loss 
Realized net loss for the year, 

net of income taxes of $36 
 
 - 

 
 (8,183)

 
 - 

 
 (8,183)

 
 (8,183)

change in unrealized revenue for the year, 
net of income taxes of ($600)  - 

 
 - 

 
 (2,055)

 
 (2,055)   (2,055)

Net loss for the year   -   (8,183)   (2,055)   (10,238)   (10,238)

sHaRe caPItal oPeRatIons

Shares issued  79,544   -   -   -   79,544

Redemption of shares   (1,379)   (22)   -   (22)   (1,401)

  78,165   (22)   -   (22)   78,143

Net change for the year   78,165   (8,205)   (2,055)   (10,260)   67,905

balance – December 31, 2006   650,197   16,982   (12,559)   4,423   654,620

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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stateMents of eaRnIngs (loss)

For the years ended december 31, 2007 and 2006   
(in thousands of dollars, except number of shares and net loss per common share)   

 2006
 RestateD

 2007  (note 3)
 $  $

Revenue

Realized revenue  

interest and dividends on investments   13,556   15,415 

gain (loss) on disposal of investments   (445)   863 

interest on debentures and dividends   16,505   10,464 

loss on disposal of investments impacting the Québec economy   (15,562)   (13,505)

Negotiation fees   1,813   1,356 

Membership dues   141   151 

changes in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) of

investments impacting the Québec economy   (18,510)   (2,265)

investments   (2,166)   (380)

  (4,668)   12,099 

exPenses

Operating expenses   21,819   19,902 

Shareholder services   2,022   1,978 

capital tax   527   286 

amortization of software   338   735 

 24,706   22,901

loss before income taxes   (29,374)   (10,802)

Recovery of income taxes (note 10)   (7,131)   (564)

net loss for the year   (22,243)   (10,238)

Weighted average number of common shares  68,320,868  61,364,696

net loss per common share   (0.33)   (0.17)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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stateMents of casH floWs

For the years ended december 31, 2007 and 2006   
(in thousands of dollars)    

 2006
 RestateD

 2007  (note 3)
 $  $

cash flows from

oPeRatIng actIvItIes

Net loss for the year   (22,243)   (10,238)

adjustments for

loss (gain) on disposal of investments   445   (863)

loss on disposal of investments impacting the Québec economy   15,562   13,505 

changes in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) of

investments impacting the Québec economy   18,510   2,265 

investments   2,166   380 

amortization of software   338   735 

amortization of premiums and discounts on investments   570   1,706 

Future income taxes   (3,709)   (1,041)

capitalized interest and other non-cash items   (557)   (920)

  11,082   5,529 

changes in non-cash operating working capital balances (note 11)   (1,831)   (5,733)

 9,251   (204)

InvestIng actIvItIes

acquisition of investments impacting the Québec economy   (115,325)   (97,082)

acquisition of investments   (110,550)   (128,908)

Proceeds on disposal of investments impacting the Québec economy   36,728   17,548 

Proceeds on disposal of investments   97,164   144,499 

  (91,983)   (63,943)

fInancIng actIvItIes

issuance of common shares   101,850   79,457 

Redemption of shares   (1,596)   (1,401)

  100,254   78,056 

net changes in cash and cash equivalents during the year   17,522   13,909 

cash and cash equivalents – beginning of the year   20,600   6,691 

cash and cash equivalents – end of the year   38,122   20,600 

supplementary information

income taxes paid   987   5,847

 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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notes to fInancIal stateMents 

as at december 31, 2007 and 2006   
(tabular amounts are in thousands of dollars, unless otherwise specified)

1    goveRnIng statutes, MIssIon, aDMInIstRatIon anD InvestMents

governing statutes and mission

capital régional et coopératif Desjardins (the “company”) is constituted by an act of the Québec National assembly (R.S.Q. c. c-6.1) and is deemed 
to have been incorporated by the filing of statutes on july 1, 2001. The company started its activities on November 5, 2001 and is a legal person with 
share capital whose mission is to:

n raise venture capital for the benefit of Québec resource regions (abitibi-Témiscamingue, Bas-Saint-laurent, côte-Nord, gaspésie–Îles-de-la-Madeleine,  
Mauricie, Nord-du-Québec and Saguenay–lac Saint-jean) and the cooperative sector;

n promote economic development in the resource regions through investments in eligible entities operating in those regions;
n support the cooperative movement throughout Québec by investing in eligible cooperatives;
n support eligible entities in their start-up phase and their development;
n stimulate the Québec economy through investments in all parts of the territory of Québec.

administration

The affairs of the company are administered by a Board of Directors typically composed of 13 members, as follows:

n eight persons appointed by the President of the Desjardins group;
n two persons elected by the general Meeting of shareholders of the company;
n two persons appointed by the above-mentioned ten members, selected from a group of persons whom they deem to be representative of eligible 

entities as described in the act;
n the general Manager of the company.

Investments

The company may acquire minority interests, mainly in eligible entities, with or without a guarantee or security. eligible entities include eligible 
cooperatives and partnerships or a legal person actively operating an enterprise, the majority of whose employees are resident in Québec and with less 
than $100,000,000 of assets and net equity of not more than $50,000,000.

The company may invest up to 5% of its assets (as established on the basis of the last accountants’ valuation) in the same eligible enterprise or 
cooperative and the investment is generally planned for a period of five to eight years. This percentage may be increased to 10% to allow the company 
to acquire securities in an entity operating in Québec but which is not an eligible entity. in such case, the company may, directly or indirectly, acquire 
or hold shares representing up to a maximum of 30% of the voting rights, which can be exercised in all circumstances.

Pursuant to the act, other investments may qualify as eligible such as investments in certain investment funds if required specific conditions provided 
for in the act exist.

During each fiscal year from that beginning on january 1, 2006, the portion of the company’s investments in eligible entities, as well as other eligible 
investments which do not entail any security or hypothec and are made as first purchaser, must represent on average at least 60% of the average net 
assets of the company for the preceding year. Furthermore, a portion representing at least 35% of that percentage must be invested in entities situated 
in resource regions of Québec or in eligible cooperatives.

in its eligibility calculations, the company also takes into account the investments it has made other than as first purchaser for the acquisition of  
securities issued by an eligible entity. For investments made prior to November 10, 2007, these investments should not represent more than one third 
of the total investments made by the company as first purchaser in this entity. For investments made on or after November 10, 2007, this restric-
tion is lifted, but the company may not make investments other than as first purchaser totalling more than 20% of its net assets as at the preceding  
year-end for those investments to be eligible.

These rules have been respected as at December 31, 2007.
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2    sIgnIfIcant accountIng PolIcIes

use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting year. The principal estimates are related to the determination of the fair 
value of investments impacting the Québec economy. actual results could differ from those estimates. Those estimates are reviewed periodically and  
adjustments as they become necessary, are reported in earnings (loss) in the year in which they are known.

comprehensive income

The statement of comprehensive income is not provided since net earnings and comprehensive income are the same.

Investments impacting the Québec economy

listed shares
The investments in listed shares are recorded at their fair value. Fair value is established using the bid-side level at market closing on the balance sheet 
date when an active market is available. Otherwise, the fair value may be established using unlisted share valuation techniques. The value of the shares 
that are restricted in negotiability or transferability is adjusted by a discount. The company determines the amount of this discount based on the nature 
and duration of the restriction, the relative volatility of the share’s performance, as well as the importance of the interest held in the overall float of 
outstanding shares.

unlisted shares, debentures and advances
unlisted shares, debentures and advances are valued at their fair value, determined in accordance with appropriate methods of valuation, including 
primarily comparison to arm’s-length transactions or takeover bids, and the capitalization of representative earnings before interest, taxes, amortization 
and capitalization or discounting of cash flows.

Significant assumptions used in the determination of fair value can include the discount or capitalization rate, the rate of return and the weighting of 
forecasted earnings.

Sureties
When it is probable that an amount will be disbursed by the company in relation to a granted surety, the amount of liabilities accounted for is estimated 
using an asset-based approach and a liquidation value method.

Investments

investments consist of temporary investments, bonds, preferred shares and units of funds of hedge funds recorded at fair value. units of funds of hedge 
funds are recorded at fair value estimated by their respective managers at the balance sheet date. For all other investments, fair value is calculated  
according to the market value, which is the bid-side level at market closing on the balance sheet date. 

Obligations related to securities sold short
Securities sold short as part of trading activities, which represent the company’s obligation to deliver securities sold which were not owned at the time 
of sale, are recorded as liabilities offsetting the investments and are carried at fair value. Realized and unrealized gains and losses thereon are recorded 
in revenue in “interest and dividends on investments”. as at December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, the company has no securities sold short. 

Securities purchased under resale agreements and securities sold under repurchase agreements
The company enters into short-term purchases and sales of securities with simultaneous agreements to sell and buy back those securities at a specified  
price and on a specified date. Those agreements are accounted for as collateralized lending and borrowing transactions, and are recorded on the 
balance sheet at the selling or repurchase price specified under the agreement. The difference between the purchase price and specified selling price 
and the difference between the selling price and the specified repurchase price are recorded using the accrual method in “interest and dividends on 
investments”. as at December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, the company has no securities purchased under resale agreements or securities sold 
under repurchase agreements.  

cash and cash equivalents

cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances and short-term deposits with original terms to maturity of three months or less.
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software

Software is recorded at cost and amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of three to five years.

foreign currency translation

assets measured at fair value, monetary assets and monetary liabilities are translated into canadian dollars at the rate of exchange in effect at the 
balance sheet date. Revenues and expenses denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the transaction date. 
Foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of earnings.

Income taxes

The company uses the liability method in accounting for income taxes. according to this method, future income taxes are determined using the  
difference between the accounting and tax bases of assets and liabilities. The tax rate in effect when these differences are expected to reverse is used 
to calculate future income taxes at the balance sheet date. Future income tax assets are recognized when it is more likely than not that the assets will 
be realized.

Revenue recognition

interest and dividends
interest is recorded on an accrual basis when collection is considered probable. Dividends are recorded as at the holder-of-record date and when they 
are declared by the issuing companies.

gains and losses on disposal
gains and losses on disposal of investments and investments impacting the Québec economy are recorded at the date of sale and represent the  
difference between the sale proceeds and the unamortized cost, without taking into consideration the unrealized appreciation (depreciation) recorded 
in previous years, which is reversed and taken into account in change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) for the year.

Membership dues
Membership dues are recorded at the time of a shareholder’s initial subscription and on the closure of that shareholder’s last account.

Negotiation fees
Negotiation fees are recorded when the service is performed and when collection is considered probable.

Premiums and discounts 
Premiums and discounts on determined maturity portfolio investments are amortized using the internal rate of return method up to the maturity date 
of these investments. Premiums and discounts are recorded in “interest and dividends on investments”.

3    cHanges In accountIng PolIcIes

accounting changes

On january 1, 2007, the company adopted a new section of the canadian institute of chartered accountants (cica) Handbook, Section 1506,  
“accounting changes”. This standard establishes criteria for changing accounting policies, together with the accounting treatment and disclosure  
of changes in accounting policies and estimates, and correction of errors.

consolidation of interests in investment companies

in april 2007, the accounting Standards Board (acSB) agreed to propose a modification to accounting guideline No. 18, ”investment companies” 
(acg-18). This amendment changes the criteria for determining if interests in investment companies must be consolidated or presented at fair value. 
The company early adopted the amendment of acg-18.

notes to FInancIal statements (contInued)   
(tabular amounts are in thousands of dollars, unless otherwise specified)
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as a result, all of the company’s interests in investment companies are no longer subject to consolidation and are presented at fair value. all the interests  
which were presented previously at fair value remain as such.  

The comparative figures for the year ended December 31, 2006 were restated in consequence. The restatement had the following impact:  
investments impacting the Québec economy increased by $22.3M, investments decreased by $27.9M, cash and cash equivalents decreased by $20.0M 
and the Minority interest of $25.3M was eliminated.

This change had no impact on shareholders’ equity and net value per common share as of December 31, 2006, nor on net loss and net loss per  
common share for the year ended December 31, 2006.

financial instruments

On january 1, 2007,  the company adopted, without retroactive application, Section 3855, “Financial instruments – Recognition and Measurement” 
of the cica Handbook. Since the company is an investment company, the changes in accounting policies arising from the application of this Section 
apply only to certain items.

This change had no impact on net loss and net loss per common share for the year nor on net value per common share as at December 31, 2007.

4    futuRe accountIng cHanges

in December 2006, the cica issued new accounting standards: Handbook Section 1535, “capital Disclosures”, Handbook Section 3862,  
“Financial instruments – Disclosures”, and Handbook Section 3863, “Financial instruments – Presentation”. These new standards will be effective for 
the year beginning on january 1, 2008. Section 1535 specifies the disclosure of an entity’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital. 
Sections 3862 and 3863 replace Handbook Section 3861, “Financial instruments – Disclosure and Presentation”, revising and enhancing its disclosure 
requirements. These new sections place increased emphasis on disclosures about the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments and 
how the entity manages those risks.

These new standards focus on the information to provide and will not have any impact on the results and on the financial position of the company.

5    InvestMents IMPactIng tHe QuÉbec econoMy

a)  as at DeceMbeR 31, 2006
 as at DeceMbeR 31, 2007  RestateD (note 3)
 cost  fair value  cost  fair value

 $  $  $  $

unsecured

common shares   123,352   117,211   99,802   105,136 

Preferred shares   110,271   89,135   114,815   96,563 

Debentures and advances   155,788   148,144   110,594   107,406 

  389,411   354,490   325,211   309,105 

Secured

Debentures and advances   6,725   6,292   7,333   6,595 

  396,136   360,782   332,544   315,700 

agreements related to investments impacting the Québec economy may include clauses providing conversion and redemption options.  
  
The debentures and advances bear interest at a weighted average rate of 10.1% (December 31, 2006 – 10.1%) and have an average residual maturity 
of 4.55 years (December 31, 2006 – 4.60 years). For substantially all the interest-bearing debentures and advances, the interest rate is fixed.

notes to FInancIal statements (contInued)   
(tabular amounts are in thousands of dollars, unless otherwise specified)
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b) allocation of investments and funds committed by industry segment

   as at DeceMbeR 31, 2007 
  funds
 unrealized  committed

 Investments   appreciation  fair  but not   total
Industry segment  at cost  (depreciation)  value  disbursed*  sureties*  commitment

 $  $  $  $  $  $
cooperatives   34,923   (5,587)   29,336   3,225   -   32,561 

industrial   173,783   (5,991)   167,792   8,952   -   176,744 

Health and biotechnology   61,390   (21,330)   40,060   10,043   -   50,103 

Telecommunications   31,457   (183)   31,274   4,822   -   36,096 

information technology  38,400   2,473   40,873   287   -   41,160 

investment funds   56,183   (4,736)   51,447   46,295   -   97,742 

Total   396,136   (35,354)   360,782   73,624   -   434,406

   as at DeceMbeR 31, 2006 
 RestateD (note 3)

  funds
 unrealized  committed

 Investments   appreciation  fair  but not   total
Industry segment  at cost  (depreciation)  value  disbursed*  sureties*  commitment

 $  $  $  $  $  $
cooperatives   37,494   (2,242)   35,252   1,316   775   37,343 

industrial   118,904   (3,566)   115,338   29,162   -   144,500 

Health and biotechnology   51,734   (9,896)   41,838   9,263   -   51,101 

Telecommunications   34,386   2,960   37,346   4,558   -   41,904 

information technology   36,966   (2,710)   34,256   6,602   92   40,950 

investment funds   53,060   (1,390)   51,670   52,103   -   103,773 

Total   332,544   (16,844)   315,700   103,004   867   419,571 

*Funds committed but not disbursed and sureties are not included in the company’s assets.

c)  Funds committed but not disbursed represent investments that have been agreed upon and which have been committed but not disbursed at the 
end of the year. Future disbursements are subject to certain conditions. assuming that the conditions will be respected, the estimated installments 
over the coming years ended December 31 are as follows:

 $

  2008  46,937

  2009  16,772

  2010  4,000

  2011   5,915

 73,624

notes to FInancIal statements (contInued)   
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6    InvestMents 

a)  allocation of investments by instrument

 as at DeceMbeR 31, 2006
 as at DeceMbeR 31, 2007  RestateD (note 3)
 unamortized  unamortized  
 cost  fair value  cost  fair value
 $  $  $  $

Bonds

Federal  87,196  87,179  79,514  79,274

Provincial and guaranteed  102,049  102,026  125,949  125,819

Financial institutions  60,546  59,815  57,187  57,616

companies  34,974  34,948  31,466  31,936

Supranational entities  2,012  1,995  -  - 

 286,777  285,963  294,116  294,645

Preferred shares  15,321  13,959  10,611  10,700

units of funds of hedge funds  15,000  15,628  -  - 

Total  317,098  315,550  304,727  305,345

b)  allocation of bonds by maturity date 
 as at DeceMbeR 31, 2007

Maturity  less than  1 to  More than 
 1 year  5 years  5 years  total
 $  $  $  $

unamortized cost  -  195,921  90,856  286,777

Par value  -  194,819  90,894  285,713

Fair value  -  194,564  91,399  285,963

average nominal rate*  n/a  4.64%  4.62%  4.64%

average effective rate  n/a  4.39%  4.61%  4.46%

 as at DeceMbeR 31, 2006
 RestateD (note 3)

Maturity  less than  1 to  More than 
 1 year  5 years  5 years  total
 $  $  $  $

unamortized cost  5,085  147,553  141,478  294,116

Par value  5,050  144,367  141,480  290,897

Fair value  5,081  147,361  142,203  294,645

average nominal rate*  5.48%  4.91%  4.38%  4.66%

average effective rate  4.30%  4.23%  4.37%  4.30%

*Substantially all bonds are fixed-interest rate issues.

notes to FInancIal statements (contInued)   
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7    accounts ReceIvable
 as at
 DeceMbeR 31,

 as at  2006
 DeceMbeR 31,  RestateD
 2007  (note 3)
 $  $

interest receivable on investments   2,880   2,971 

interest receivable on investments impacting the Québec economy   2,042   1,311 

Sales taxes receivable   468   195 

Subscriptions and membership dues receivable   -   87 

Other accounts receivable   1,672   1,192

  7,062   5,756 

8    accounts Payable anD accRueD lIabIlItIes
 as at
 DeceMbeR 31,

 as at  2006
 DeceMbeR 31,  RestateD
 2007  (note 3)
 $  $

entities of the Desjardins group

Shareholder services   674   505 

Other entities of the group   233   392 

Redeemed shares payable   15   - 

Other accounts payable and accrued liabilities   327   262

 1,249   1,159

9    sHaRe caPItal

authorized      
The company is authorized to issue common shares and fractions of common shares without par value, participating, voting, with the right to elect 
two representatives to the Board of Directors, redeemable under certain conditions provided in the act, so that its capital increases by a maximum 
of $150 million annually.

as of the capitalization period following the one at the end of which the company first reaches capitalization of at least $1 billion, the company 
may collect, per capitalization period, the lesser of $150 million and the amount corresponding to the reduction in paid-up capital attributable to all 
the shares and fractions of shares redeemed or purchased by agreement by the company during the preceding capitalization period.

each capitalization period, which lasts twelve months, will begin on March 1 of each year. The maximum the company can raise in the capitalization 
period ending on February 29, 2008 is $100 million. The company does not expect to make any further share capital issuances during the current 
capitalization period.

issued and fully paid  as at  as at
 DeceMbeR 31,  DeceMbeR 31,
 2007  2006
 $  $

74,097,440 common shares

(December 31, 2006 – 64,139,488)  750,345  650,197

During the year, the company issued 10,117,487 common shares (December 31, 2006 – 7,675,384) for a cash consideration of $101,763,099  
(December 31, 2006 – $79,543,500).      
      

notes to FInancIal statements (contInued)   
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During the year, the company redeemed 159,535 common shares (December 31, 2006 – 136,150) for a cash consideration of $1,611,237  
(December 31, 2006 – $1,401,258).      
      
These data do not include the redemption requests made within 30 days of subscription.
      
Redemption criteria

The company is bound to redeem a whole common share or a fraction of a common share in the following circumstances:    
 
n at the request of the person who acquired it from the company at least seven years prior to redemption;     
n at the request of a person to whom it has been devolved by succession;
n at the request of the person who acquired it from the company if the person applies to the company therefor in writing within 30 days of sub-

scribing it;
n at the request of a person who acquired it from the company if that person is declared to have a severe and permanent mental or physical disability 

which makes this person incapable of pursuing his or her work.     

Moreover, the company may purchase a common share or a fractional common share by agreement in the cases and to the extent permitted by a 
policy adopted by the Board of Directors and approved by the Québec Minister of Finance.      

The redemption price of the common shares will be set twice a year, at dates that are six months apart, by the company’s Board of Directors on the 
basis of the company’s value as determined in the audited financial statements.      

tax credit      
      
The purchase of shares of the company entitles the investor to receive a non-refundable tax credit, for Québec tax purposes only, for an amount equal to:

For purchases prior to March 24, 2006: 50% tax credit, $1,250 maximum.      
For purchases from March 24, 2006 to November 10, 2007: 35% tax credit, $875 maximum.
For purchases subsequent to November 10, 2007: 50% tax credit, $2,500 maximum.      

      
as of 2008, certain holders of shares issued by the company will become eligible to redeem them under the terms set out in the prospectus. investors who 
withdraw some or all of their shares as part of a redemption after a seven-year holding period will not be able to claim the tax credit for any purchase for 
which the tax credit could be applied in the same or subsequent taxation years.

10   IncoMe taxes

The company is subject to Federal and provincial income taxes.

a) The income tax expense is detailed as follows:

 DeceMbeR 31,  DeceMbeR 31,
 2007  2006
 $  $

current income taxes  (3,422)   477

Future income taxes  (3,709)  (1,041)

 (7,131)  (564)

b) The actual income tax rate differs from the combined basic income tax rate and is explained as follows:

 DeceMbeR 31,  DeceMbeR 31,
 2007  2006
 $  $

income taxes by applying the combined income tax rate of 39.02%  (11,462)  (4,444)

Permanent differences between earnings before income taxes and taxable income and other items  4,331  3,880

 (7,131)  (564)

notes to FInancIal statements (contInued)   
(tabular amounts are in thousands of dollars, unless otherwise specified)
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c)  Future income taxes relate to the following items:
 as at 
 DeceMbeR 31,

 as at 
 DeceMbeR 31,

 2007  2006
 $  $

Future income tax assets

unrealized depreciation   7,498   3,934

amortization of premiums on bonds   494   595

Taxes losses carried over   140   - 

Other   61   54

  8,193   4,583

Future income tax liabilities

Software  (21)  (120)

Future income tax assets, net  8,172   4,463 

11   casH floWs 

The changes in non-cash operating working capital balances consist of the following: 

 DeceMbeR 31,
 2006

 DeceMbeR 31,  RestateD
 2007  (note 3)
 $  $

increase in accounts receivable   (1,393)   (541)

increase in income taxes   (433)   (5,084)

Decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities   (5)   (108)

 (1,831)   (5,733)

12   RelateD PaRty tRansactIons

Major agreements with the company and the entities of the Desjardins group are as follows: 
 
 
n The company has entrusted the management of its operations, including management of its portfolio, to Desjardins venture capital inc. (“Dvc”),  

in accordance with the strategies and objectives approved by the Board of Directors. The management contract signed by Dvc and the company 
is in effect for an initial ten-year period, unless the parties agree to terminate the contract by mutual agreement. Thereafter, the contract shall be 
automatically renewed for a five-year period unless either party decides to terminate the contract by giving written notice of at least 18 months. 

 
 under this contract, the company is required to pay an annual management fee equal to 3% of its annual average assets net value reduced by any 

amount payable for the acquisition of investments. This percentage is reduced to 2.5% from the fiscal year following that in which the company’s 
net asset value reaches $750,000,000. an adjustment is made to the management fee charged to the company to avoid double billing relative to 
the company’s interest in some funds. 

 
n The company has appointed Desjardins Trust inc. to act as its registrar and transfer agent with respect to shareholder transactions. This contract was 

for a period of three years beginning january 1, 2005. The contract was renewed for a two-year period beginning january 1, 2008. 
 
n The company has appointed the Fédération des caisses Desjardins du Québec for the distribution of the company’s shares in the entities of the 

Desjardins group. This agreement is effective for one year and will be automatically renewed each year under the same terms and conditions unless 
one of the parties gives written notice to the contrary three months before the expiry date of the agreement.  

notes to FInancIal statements (contInued)   
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The company is related to the Desjardins group. in the normal course of its operations, the company carried out transactions with other entities of 
the Desjardins group. all of these transactions are measured at the exchange amount:

 as at
 DeceMbeR 31,

 as at  2006
 DeceMbeR 31,  RestateD
 2007  (note 3)
 $  $

Balance sheets

caisse centrale Desjardins

cash and cash equivalents   23,143   16,415

capital Desjardins inc.

investments   19,652   23,788 

Desjardins capital de développement (Regional funds)

accounts receivable   8   318 

accounts payable and accrued liabilities   151   119 

Desjardins global asset Management

investments   15,628   - 

Desjardins – innovatech S.e.c.

accounts payable and accrued liabilities   -   270

Desjardins Trust inc.

cash and cash equivalents   1,321   47 

accounts payable and accrued liabilities   674   505 

Desjardins Securities

cash and cash equivalents   13,658   1,007 

Desjardins venture capital inc.

accounts receivable   -   218 

accounts payable and accrued liabilities   77   - 

Statements of earnings

caisse centrale Desjardins

interest and dividends on investments   596   328 

capital Desjardins inc.

interest and dividends on investments   986   1,150 

loss on disposal of investments   (1)   (3)

changes in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) of investments  (412)   (237) 

Desjardins global asset Management

changes in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) of investments  628   - 

Desjardins Securities

interest and dividends on investments   252   207 

Desjardins Trust inc.

Shareholder services   1,770   1,713 

Desjardins venture capital inc.

Management fees   20,613   18,623 

Fédération des caisses Desjardins du Québec

Operating expenses   455   316 

notes to FInancIal statements (contInued)   
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13   fInancIal InstRuMents

fair value 

The fair value of accounts receivable, cash and cash equivalents, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximates their carrying value given 
their current maturities. 

credit risk 
 
in pursuing its venture capital investment mission, the company is exposed to credit risk related to potential financial losses of a partner company.  
By diversifying its investments by industry segment, stage of development and type of financial instrument, and by limiting the potential risk related to each 
individual company, the company keeps portfolio volatility to a minimum with respect to the potential occurrence of negative events.

liquid portfolio risks are managed by diversification across numerous issuers with a BBB credit rating or higher. counterparty risks arising from cash 
and repurchase agreement transactions are limited to the immediate short term.

foreign exchange risk

changes in currency values have an impact on several companies with which the company is associated. However, the net effect of an appreciation 
in the canadian dollar is not necessarily negative for these companies. While it has an adverse effect on certain exporters, it can also be beneficial for 
companies that import a significant portion of their inputs or for companies that seize the opportunity to acquire equipment in order to drive future 
productivity.

currency fluctuations impact the fair value of investments valued initially in foreign currencies and subsequently translated into canadian dollars at 
the prevailing rate of exchange. These investments whose value varies in step with fluctuations in the value of the u.S. dollar represent a fair value 
of $38.1 million as at December 31, 2007, compared with $44.4 million as at December 31, 2006. in December 2007, the company authorized the 
implementation of a systematic hedging strategy against the foreign exchange risk related to existing investments with exit horizons of more than 
12 months, as well as for any new foreign exchange position. This strategy will be phased in during 2008.

Interest rate risk 

cash and cash equivalents bear interest at a weighted average rate of 4.11% (December 31, 2006 – 3.76%). accounts receivable and accounts  
payable and accrued liabilities bear no interest. 

The company does not hold any derivative financial instruments.

14   coMPaRatIve aMounts
    
certain amounts of the last year were restated to reflect the new accounting policy relating to the criteria used to determine if an interest in an  
investment company must be consolidated or presented at its fair value (note 3). 

15   scHeDule of cost of InvestMents IMPactIng tHe QuÉbec econoMy      

The schedule of cost of investments impacting the Québec economy together with the auditors’ report is presented separately from these financial  
statements and is available at the company’s head office, on its website and on SeDaR.

notes to FInancIal statements (contInued)   
(tabular amounts are in thousands of dollars, unless otherwise specified)
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To the Shareholders of capital régional et coopératif Desjardins

On February 14, 2008, we reported on the balance sheets of capital  
régional et coopératif Desjardins (the “company”) as at December 31,  
2007 and 2006 and the statements of earnings, shareholders’ equity and 
cash flows for the years then ended. 

in our audits of the financial statements referred to above, we also  
audited the schedule of cost of investments impacting the Québec  
economy as at December 31, 2007. This schedule is the responsibility  
of the company’s management. 

in our opinion, this schedule presents fairly, in all material respects, the  
financial information therein when read in conjunction with the company’s  
financial statements.

(signed) Pricewaterhouse coopers llP

chartered accountants

February 14, 2008

auDItoRs’ RePoRt
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scHeDule of cost of InvestMents  
IMPactIng tHe QuÉbec econoMy

as at december 31, 2007
(in thousands of dollars)

unsecured  
investments

secured 
investments

Initial  
investment year

Industry
segment

common
shares

 $

Preferred
shares

 $

Debentures
and advances

$

Debentures
and advances

$
total 

$

abItIbI-tÉMIscaMIngue

complexe funéraire Ste-Bernadette 2007 i  -  170  170  -  340 

équipement jexPlore inc. 2007 i  -  -  300  -  300 

Héli explore inc. 2007 i  -  125  125  -  250 

Hôtel des eskers inc. 2007 i  -  200  200  -  400 

Hôtel des gouverneurs 2007 i  -  200  200  -  400 

Hôtel Forestel val d'Or inc. 2007 i  -  225  225  -  450 

Manufacture adria inc. 2005 i  -  -  233  -  233 

total abitibi-témiscamingue  -  920  1,453  -  2,373 

bas-saInt-lauRent

aqua-Biokem BSl inc. 2002 i  -  1,904  -  212  2,116 

attellus Médical inc. 2006 i  -  750  -  -  750 

Bâtitech ltée 2007 i  70  -  372  -  442 

Bois-Franc inc. 2006 i  -  -  496  -  496 

campor inc. 2006 i  -  -  462  -  462 

Datran inc. 2007 i  -  -  500  -  500 

Diamants du Saint-laurent inc. (les ) 2002 i  292  -  -  -  292 

eastern Québec Seafoods (1998) ltd 2006 i  -  -  400  -  400 

Fabrications TjD inc. (les) 2006 i  -  -  500  -  500 

gestion arnold gauthier inc. 2002 i  -  80  441  -  521 

gestion gilles D'amours - 9159-0026 Québec inc. 2005 i  -  -  1,885  -  1,885 

graphie 222 inc. 2007 i  -  205  205  -  410 

groupe composites vci inc. 2007 i  2,250  -  1,750  -  4,000 

industries Desjardins ltée (les) 2005 i  -  -  410  -  410 

industries Massé et D'amours inc. 2005 i  -  -  213  -  213 

Planchers ancestral (2007) inc. 2007 i  -  80  -  -  80 

Produits métalliques Pouliot Machinerie inc. 2007 i  -  -  -  250  250 

Trans-Plus express j.l. inc. 2007 i  40  85  175  -  300 

total bas-saint-laurent  2,652  3,104  7,809  462  14,027 

caPItale-natIonale

céramica-concept inc. 2005 i  -  -  244  -  244 

congébec logistique inc. 2004 i  3,800  -  -  -  3,800 

coopérative de travailleurs actionnaire 
du groupe congébec

2005 c  -  -  840  -  840 

engrenage Provincial inc. 2005 i  -  -  2,311  -  2,311 

exelTech aérospace inc. 2004 i  753  -  423  -  1,176 

gestion BcK inc. 2006 i  -  -  968  -  968 

gestion Placage RMH inc. 2006 i  -  -  263  -  263 

groupe Humagade inc. 2006 Tc  -  11,651  -  -  11,651 
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unsecured  
investments

secured 
investments

Initial  
investment year

Industry
segment

common
shares

 $

Preferred
shares

 $

Debentures
and advances

$

Debentures
and advances

$
total 

$

Humagade ltd 2004 Tc  -  160  240  -  400 

labcal Technologies inc. 2004 iT  -  1,840  -  3,617  5,457 

logiciels Dynagram inc. (les) 2002 iT  137  364  -  -  501 

Maison Orthésis inc. (la) 2006 i  -  -  451  -  451 

OptoSecurity inc. 2007 Tc  -  3,500  -  -  3,500 

Oricom internet inc. 2005 i  -  -  267  -  267 

Piscines Soucy inc. 2006 i  -  -  479  -  479 

Poste express 2006 i  -  -  373  -  373 

Souris Mini inc. 2005 i  -  -  1,435  -  1,435 

usital canada inc. 2002 i  -  240  176  -  416 

total capitale-nationale  4,690  17,755  8,470  3,617  34,532 

centRe-Du-QuÉbec

autobus Thomas inc. 2007 i  -  -  900  -  900 

Bluberi group inc. 2007 iT  -  -  5,000  -  5,000 

cDM Decor Papers inc. 2006 i  -  -  1,291  -  1,291 

Demtec inc. 2005 i  -  -  858  -  858 

Fempro i inc. 2007 i  3,000  -  19,500  -  22,500 

Novatek laser inc. 2007 i  -  -  3,000  -  3,000 

Service funéraire coopératif Drummond 2007 c  -  -  225  -  225 

total centre-du-Québec  3,000  -  30,774  -  33,774 

cHauDIèRe-aPPalacHes

cHeQ FM 101,3 (9174-8004 Québec inc.) 2007 i  -  250  250  -  500 

ciF Métal ltée 2005 i  209  1,434  -  -  1,643 

Delta Steel joist inc. 2006 i  -  -  320  -  320 

Distribution eugène gagnon inc. 2006 i  -  -  339  -  339 

ebi-tech inc. 2007 i  -  -  400  -  400 

Marquis Book Printing inc. 2007 i  95  405  1,000  -  1,500 

Matiss inc. 2002 i  400  -  245  -  645 

Portes Patio Résiver inc. 2003 i  -  299  38  -  337 

Produits de plancher Finitec inc. 2007 i  -  -  500  -  500 

Tibetral Système inc. 2006 i  -  400  88  -  488 

Transfab énergie inc. 2006 i  -  -  250  -  250 

Transport de l'amiante 2006 i  -  -  167  -  167 

total chaudière-appalaches  704  2,788  3,597  -  7,089 

côte-noRD

interconnect inc. 2006 Tc  -  -  178  -  178 

Solugaz inc. (formerly Propane charlevoix inc.) 2007 i  -  -  500  -  500 

total côte-nord  -  -  678  -  678 

schedule oF cost oF Investments ImpactIng the Québec economy (contInued)
as at december 31, 2007
(in thousands of dollars)
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unsecured  
investments

secured 
investments

Initial  
investment year

Industry
segment

common
shares

 $

Preferred
shares

 $

Debentures
and advances

$

Debentures
and advances

$
total 

$

easteRn toWnsHIPs

camoplast inc. 2002 i  23,171  -  -  -  23,171 

cogiscan inc. 2002 iT  -  849  1,215  -  2,064 

complexe sportif interplus 2007 i  -  -  150  -  150 

coopérative de travailleurs actionnaire Filage 
Sherbrooke (FilSpec)

2004 c  -  -  1,818  -  1,818 

coopérative funéraire de l'estrie 2006 c  -  -  1,560  -  1,560 

entreprises Michel lapierre inc. (les) 2004 i  -  1,508  1,500  -  3,008 

extermination cameron inc. 2005 i  -  -  399  -  399 

FilSpec inc. (9120-0782 Québec inc.) 2004 i  440  -  84  -  524 

FilSpec inc. (9139-4841 Québec inc.) 2004 i  498  -  -  -  498 

gestion Ferti-val inc. 2003 i  24  536  -  -  560 

iPS Thérapeutique inc. 2002 H  -  80  -  40  120 

Mésotec inc. 2005 i  2,104  -  -  -  2,104 

Mirazed inc. 2007 i  -  330  870  -  1,200 

Multi X inc. 2006 i  -  -  934  -  934 

Société industrielle de Décolletage  
et d'Outillage (S.i.D.O.) ltée

2005 i  -  2,409  2,795  -  5,204 

Tranzyme Pharma inc. 2003 H  -  5,668  -  -  5,668 

total eastern townships  26,237  11,380  11,325  40  48,982 

gasPÉsIe–Îles-De-la-MaDeleIne

azentic inc. 2006 iT  -  -  311  -  311 

éocycle Technologies inc. 2004 i  805  150  -  -  955 

gestion c.T.M.a. inc. 2007 i  -  -  2,000  -  2,000 

groupe alimentaire RT ltée 2005 i  -  -  410  -  410 

Hôtel Baker ltée 2007 i  -  -  300  -  300 

Pesca conseillers en biologie inc. 2007 i  -  -  500  -  500 

total gaspésie–Îles-de-la-Madeleine  805  150  3,521  -  4,476 

lanauDIèRe

Management P.R. Maintenance inc. 2006 i  -  -  683  -  683 

Nicorp inc. 2006 i  -  -  320  -  320 

Ravenco (1991) inc. 2006 i  -  300  585  -  885 

Technologies Photogram inc. 2005 i  -  380  244  -  624 

total lanaudière  -  680  1,832  -  2,512 

lauRentIans

capital Pro-égaux inc. 2004 i  146  -  -  -  146 

coopérative Forestière des Hautes-laurentides 2002 c  -  -  406  -  406 

Triton électronique inc. 2003 i  2,533  -  -  -  2,533 

total laurentians  2,679  -  406  -  3,085 

schedule oF cost oF Investments ImpactIng the Québec economy (contInued)
as at december 31, 2007
(in thousands of dollars)
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unsecured  
investments

secured 
investments

Initial  
investment year

Industry
segment

common
shares

 $

Preferred
shares

 $

Debentures
and advances

$

Debentures
and advances

$
total 

$

laval

20-20 Technologies inc. 2002 iT  864  -  -  -  864 

canadian lebanese investment corp. ltd 2007 i  -  -  1,500  -  1,500 

Datacom Wireless corporation inc. 2003 Tc  2,588  -  -  -  2,588 

Nuera Solutions air inc. (formerly Duo vac inc.) 2005 i  -  -  1,500  -  1,500 

total laval  3,452  -  3,000  -  6,452 

MauRIcIe

alliance environnement (gDg) inc. 2006 i  -  -  350  -  350 

atelier d'usinage Tifo inc. 2006 i  -  -  281  -  281 

ébénisterie St-Tite inc. 2005 i  -  -  307  -  307 

innovations voltflex inc. 2006 i  -  -  550  -  550 

louiseville Specialty Products inc. 2004 i  51  -  5,295  -  5,346 

Morand excavation inc. 2007 i  -  -  500  -  500 

Premier aviation centre de révision inc. 2005 i  -  -  929  -  929 

Solus safety inc. 2006 i  -  -  2,100  -  2,100 

total Mauricie  51  -  10,312  -  10,363 

MontÉRÉgIe

conporec inc. 2005 i  317  -  -  -  317 

Distech contrôles inc. 2003 i  -  923  534  -  1,457 

équipement militaire Mil-Quip inc. 2007 i  -  -  665  -  665 

galenova inc. 2006 H  -  -  1,388  -  1,388 

Knowlton Development corporation inc. 2006 i  -  5,826  8,740  -  14,566 

Maçonnerie Rainville et Frères inc. 2007 i  -  -  717  -  717 

Mini-centrales de l'est inc. 2006 i  -  -  200  -  200 

Miss arachew inc. 2006 i  -  -  541  -  541 

Reproductions BlB inc. (les) 2004 i  -  163  175  -  338 

Ryshco Média inc. 2002 iT  -  -  -  200  200 

Salerno Transparent Bags (1997) ltd 2007 i  -  353  1,734  -  2,087 

Sun Marketing communications ltd 2007 i  -  -  300  -  300 

total Montérégie  317  7,265  14,994  200  22,776 

MontRÉal

3ci inc. 2007 i  1,500  -  -  -  1,500 

acti-Menu inc. 2005 H  -  1,010  -  -  1,010 

aegera Therapeutics inc. 2002 H  -  6,382  -  -  6,382 

aldeavision Solutions inc. 2006 iT  55  -  145  -  200 

alyotech canada inc. 2006 iT  5,000  -  -  -  5,000 

ambrilia Biopharma inc. 2003 H  3,258  -  1,683  -  4,941 

aPTiTuDe, Services de consultation en 
réadaptation inc.

2006 i  -  -  302  -  302 

schedule oF cost oF Investments ImpactIng the Québec economy (contInued)
as at december 31, 2007
(in thousands of dollars)



 46 caPiTal RégiONal eT cOOPéRaTiF DeSjaRDiNS

unsecured  
investments

secured 
investments

Initial  
investment year

Industry
segment

common
shares

 $

Preferred
shares

 $

Debentures
and advances

$

Debentures
and advances

$
total 

$

artificial Mind and Movement inc. (a2M) 2002 iT  1,186  -  146  -  1,332 

aurelium BioPharma inc. 2003 H  -  2,869  40  -  2,909 

Bioaxone Thérapeutique inc. 2002 H  2,000  -  1,379  -  3,379 

cardianove inc. 2003 H  -  880  -  -  880 

chronogen inc. 2003 H  -  4,800  -  -  4,800 

coopérative de travailleurs actionnaire de Tec 2005 c  -  -  229  -  229 

coradiant (canada) inc. 2004 iT  -  11,050  -  -  11,050 

emballages Deltapac inc. (les) 2005 i  290  -  710  -  1,000 

enobia Pharma inc. 2005 H  -  4,709  -  -  4,709 

geS Technologies inc. 2007 i  -  -  500  -  500 

industries Spectra Premium inc. (les) 2006 i  3,000  -  4,500  -  7,500 

isacSoft inc. 2005 iT  1,314  -  -  -  1,314 

la coop Fédérée 2005 c  -  -  25,000  -  25,000 

liquidXStream Systems inc. 2007 Tc  -  2,500  -  -  2,500 

lxSix Photonics inc. 2002 Tc  -  4,681  3,072  627  8,380 

Manutention Québec inc. 2007 i  -  -  2,000  -  2,000 

My virtual Model inc. 2005 iT  13  -  2,000  -  2,013 

New iT Santé 2005 iT  -  480  202  -  682 

Nstein Technologies inc. 2004 iT  310  -  -  -  310 

Osprey Pharmaceuticals limited 2003 H  -  1,698  -  1,179  2,877 

Painceptor Pharma corporation 2004 H  -  3,800  4,033  -  7,833 

Qualiporc Regroupement coopératif 2005 c  -  -  3,000  600  3,600 

Resonant Medical inc. 2004 H  -  5,800  -  -  5,800 

SDP components inc. 2002 i  -  1,097  -  -  1,097 

Spinlogic Technologies inc. 2007 iT  278  -  400  -  678 

Technologies Miranda inc. 2002 Tc  1,998  -  -  -  1,998 

Topigen Pharmaceuticals inc. 2004 H  -  8,695  -  -  8,695 

Tungle corporation 2007 iT  -  625  -  -  625 

total Montréal  20,202  61,076  49,341  2,406  133,025 

outaouaIs

cactus commerce inc. 2004 iT  -  800  -  -  800 

coopérative Forestière de l'Outaouais 2006 c  -  -  219  -  219 

groupement forestier du Pontiac inc. 2006 i  -  -  219  -  219 

Service à domicile de l'Outaouais inc. 2007 i  -  -  186  -  186 

total outaouais  -  800  624  -  1,424 

outsIDe QuÉbec

Openwave Systems inc. 2005 Tc  264  -  -  -  264 

total outside Québec  264  -  -  -  264 

schedule oF cost oF Investments ImpactIng the Québec economy (contInued)
as at december 31, 2007
(in thousands of dollars)
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unsecured  
investments

secured 
investments

Initial  
investment year

Industry
segment

common
shares

 $

Preferred
shares

 $

Debentures
and advances

$

Debentures
and advances

$
total 

$

saguenay–lac-saInt-jean

aménagement MYR inc. 2006 i  -  -  100  -  100 

Bois B.T. (9131-9210 Québec inc.) 2003 i  305  -  140  -  445 

canmec group inc. 2004 i  378  3,011  1,000  -  4,389 

centre de Réalisation d'Outils innovateurs inc. 2004 i  120  40  280  -  440 

constructions Péribonka inc. 2007 i  -  -  500  -  500 

constructions Proco inc. 2007 i  -  500  1,436  -  1,936 

coopérative Forestière de girardville 2007 c  -  -  500  -  500 

entreprises alfred Boivin inc. (les) 2007 i  -  -  483  -  483 

entreprises Forestières N.T. inc. (les) 2005 i  -  -  46  -  46 

Frigon électrique inc. 2005 i  -  -  80  -  80 

groupe Nokamic inc. 2005 i  -  -  77  -  77 

groupe Nova inc. 2002 i  571  338  69  -  978 

industries i.S.a. (les) 2004 i  102  -  26  -  128 

institut d'échafaudage du Québec (9020-4983 Qc inc.) 2002 i  -  -  51  -  51 

luzerne Belcan lac-Saint-jean inc. (les) 2002 c  486  41  -  -  527 

Mecfor inc. 2006 i  -  -  895  -  895 

Nature 3M inc. 2002 i  125  -  5  -  130 

Ohlin Thermo-Tech inc. 2003 i  -  18  502  -  520 

Scierie gauthier ltée 2006 i  -  -  462  -  462 

Transports cabaie inc. (les) 2006 i  -  -  68  -  68 

Transports gérold inc. 2006 i  -  -  68  -  68 

Transports Réjean Fortin inc. 2006 i  -  -  133  -  133 

végétolab inc. 2003 i  32  -  108  -  140 

viandes c.D.S. inc. (les) 2006 i  -  405  623  -  1,028 

total saguenay–lac-saint-jean  2,119  4,353  7,652  -  14,124 

InvestMent funDs

Desjardins – innovatech S.e.c. 2005 F  47,356  -  -  -  47,356 

FieR Partners, limited Partnership 2005 F  2,658  -  -  -  2,658 

MSBi investment Funds, limited Partnership 2004 F  4,870  -  -  -  4,870 

MSBi Management inc. 2004 F  154  -  -  -  154 

Novacap industries iii, l.P. 2007 F  56  -  -  -  56 

Novacap Technologies iii, l.P. 2007 F  1,086  -  -  -  1,086 

total InvestMent funDs  56,180  -  -  -  56,180

total cost  123,352  110,271  155,788  6,725  396,136

Industry segment legend 
c:    cooperatives Tc:  Telecommunications
i:      industrial iT:    information technology
H:    Health and biotechnology F:     investment Funds

schedule oF cost oF Investments ImpactIng the Québec economy (contInued)
as at december 31, 2007
(in thousands of dollars)
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lIst of InvestMents  
at cost MaDe by sPecIalty funDs  
anD PaRtneR funDs (unauDIteD)

as at december 31, 2007
(in thousands of dollars)

Information from annual 
financial Report dated

equity Interest
of the 

company
%

shares 
and units

 $

loans and 
advances

$
total

$

December 31, 2007 Desjardins – Innovatech s.e.c. 66.1

aaT inc.                          31  1,274  1,305 

albert Perron inc.                                           1,135  1,633  2,768 

aqua-Biokem BSl inc.                           1,630  410  2,040 

éocycle Technologies inc.                                    947  170  1,117 

équipements comact inc.  500  1,625  2,125 

Forage long Trou cMac inc.  -  329  329 

groupe Ohmega inc.                        171  200  371 

groupe Trifide inc.                                -  409  409 

gyro-Trac côte Ouest inc.                                               -  1,144  1,144 

gyro-Trac inc. (9163-2521 Québec inc.)                                              2,282  -  2,282 

infusion intégrale inc.                                      300  700  1,000 

junex inc.  126  1,000  1,126 

Manufacturier Minier cMac                      30  438  468 

Menu-Mer ltée  -  500  500 

P.l.c. inc.                                        -  317  317 

Premier Tech ltée                              -  448  448 

Produits Forestiers lamco inc.                 -  500  500 

Rocmec Mining inc.  -  1,000  1,000 

Technologies axion ltée                               451  642  1,093 

Marinard Biotech inc.                                        51  360  411 

Other companies (6) less than $300,000  202  654  856 

 7,856  13,753  21,609 

Funds committed but not disbursed  1,500 

 23,109 

December 31, 2006 fIeR Partners, limited Partnership 13.9

Fonds Brightspark ii, s.e.c.  1,201  -  1,201 

Fonds Propulsion iii s.e.c.  1,150  -  1,150 

garage Technologie capital-Risque canada, s.e.c.  607  -  607 

Société en commandite agechem  500  -  500 

Other fund (1) less than $300,000  239  -  239 

 3,697  -  3,697 

Funds committed but not disbursed  66,303 

 70,000 
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Information from annual 
financial Report dated

equity Interest
of the 

company
%

shares 
and units

 $

loans and 
advances

$
total

$

May 31, 2007 MsbI investment funds, limited Partnership 32.0

carboPur Technologies  1,099  -  1,099 

DFT MicroSystems  842  809  1,651 

legiTime Technologies  739  -  739 

Metafoam Technologies  750  -  750 

Milestone Pharmaceuticals  -  431  431 

MOXXi Medical  791  137  928 

Reflex Photonics  770  546  1,316 

Resonant Medical  1,851  -  1,851 

Silk Displays  -  873  873 

SiXtron advanced Materials  -  680  680 

Other companies (4) less than $300,000  257  232  489 

 7,099  3,708  10,807 

Funds committed but not disbursed  1,785 

 12,592 

novacap Industries III, l.P. 1.3

First fiscal year

novacap technologies III, l.P. 9.2

First fiscal year

This unaudited list provides details of investments superior to $300,000 made by specialty funds and partner funds in which capital régional et 
coopératif Desjardins has invested.

lIst oF Investments at cost made by specIalty Funds  
and partner Funds (unaudIted) (contInued)
as at december 31, 2007
(in thousands of dollars)
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7th annual general meetIng oF capItal régIonal et coopératIF desJardIns
Québec city convention centre, room 200  n   Friday, march 28, 2008 at 10:30 a.m.

InvestoR RelatIons
capital régional et coopératif Desjardins
2 complexe Desjardins
P.O. Box 790, Desjardins Station
Montréal,  Québec  H5B 1B9
Tel.:  1 888 522-3222
capital.regional@dcrdesjardins.com

RegIstRaR anD tRansfeRt agent 
Desjardins Trust
1 complexe Desjardins
P.O. Box 34, Desjardins Station
Montréal, Québec  H5B 1e4

auDItoRs
Pricewaterhousecoopers llP
chartered accountants

fInancIal InstItutIons
caisse centrale Desjardins
Desjardins Securities

DIstRIbutIon of caPItal RÉgIonal et 
cooPÉRatIf DesjaRDIns sHaRes
Desjardins caisse network in Québec

ManageR
Desjardins venture capital
2 complexe Desjardins
Suite 1717
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entRePReneuRs lookIng foR ventuRe caPItal  
May contact one of DesjaRDIns ventuRe caPItal 
offIces In tHe folloWIng RegIons:

abitibi-Témiscamingue laurentians

Bas-Saint-laurent laval

capitale-Nationale  Mauricie

centre-du-Québec Montérégie

chaudière-appalaches Montréal

côte-Nord Nord-du-Québec

eastern Townships Outaouais

gaspésie–Îles-de-la-Madeleine Saguenay–lac-Saint-jean

lanaudière

contact information for these regional offices may be obtained by calling  
514 281-7131 or 1 866 866-7000, ext. 7131, or by consulting our website  
at capitalregional.com

sHaReHolDeR InfoRMatIon



veRsIon fRançaIse
Des exemplaires de la version française  
de ce rapport annuel sont disponibles  
sur demande.

This seventh annual Report of capital  
régional et coopératif Desjardins was  
produced under the direction of the  
vice-President, Strategic Planning and  
communications, and the vice-President, 
Finance and Portfolio valuation of  
Desjardins venture capital.

This annual Report is also available on  
the capital régional et coopératif Desjardins 
website: capitalregional.com

The four individuals photographed for  
the cover of this annual Report are among 
the 120,652 shareholders of capital régional 
et coopératif Desjardins.
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Montréal, Québec  H5B 1B9

Telephone

1 888 522-3222
Fax

514 281-7808

Website

capitalregional.com




